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NORTHERN POWERGRID {NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARGH 2018

The directors present the annual reports and financial statements for the Regulatory Year ended 31 March 2018
of Noithatrt Powergrid (Northeast) Limited (the "Company”). The Regulatory. Accounts have been prepared in
accordance with Part A of standard condition 44 (Regulatory Accounts) of the electricity distribution license
grantéd to the Company by the Secretary of State (the "License”).

BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is an authorised distributor under the Eleciricity Act 1989 and holds :an electricity distribution
licence granted by the Secretary of State. As a distribution nétwork operator ("DNO"), the Company distributes
electricity to approximately 1.6 million customers connected to its electricity distribution network within its
distribution services area in the northeast of England, which extends from North Northumberland, south to York

and west to the Pennines,

The Company's distribution network includes over 41,000 kilometres of overhead and underground cables and
more than 27,000 substations. Electricity is réceived from National Grid's transmission system and from

genherators connected directly to the network, and then distributed at voltages of up to 132 kilovolts (“kV™).

In common with Northern Powergrid Holdings Cormipany and its subsidiaries (the “Northern Powergrid Group®),
the Company operates a business mode! and strategy based on six core principles {the “Core Principles"), which

are.

Core Principle Strategic objective | Key Performance Indicators (“KP1”)
'ﬂf Financial Strong I_finant'i'es_ that | e O_perating profit_ _
le stre noth enable improvemerit | « Maintenance of investment grade credit ratings

and growth. o Cash flow
CJ Cust_omer 'g:;g!?trig]r?al custorner | * Broad measure of customer satisfaction
A service service. » Slakeholder Engagement fank
High-quality, efficient | » Customer Minutes Lost
Operational operators running @ | » Customer Interruptions
exceflence smart refiable energy | « Nelwork investment
system. + High voltage restoration fime
; « Occupational Safety and Health Administration Rate
High-performing « Preventable Vehicle Accldents
=D Employee people doing « Lost time accidents
commitment rewarding jobs ina | « Restricted duly accidents
safe and secure » Medicat treatment accidents
warkplace. « Operational incidents
. s Absence rate
Leaders in e Total OilfFluid Lost
@ Environmental | environmental » SF6 Gas discharges
respect respect and [ow » Environmental Incidents
carbon technelogies. | « Carbon Footprint
; Trustworthy, fair and
ﬁfgg‘r‘i‘i‘;w balanced, crealing | « Quarterly certfication
win-win outcomes.

The core principles set
defined by a'number of strategic objectives.

out the basis on which the Company generales value over the longer term and are
Throughoit the report, the strategic focus of each principle sets out

the way in which each objective is to be achieved through the delivery of both financial and non-financial KPls.
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUVMBER: 02906593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR

FINANCIAL STRENGTH
| Strategic objective KPI 201718 2016117
Strong  finances  that| Operating Profit £4128.7 million £153.4 million
enable improvement and
growth. Credit Rating (Standard & Poor's) A _ A
Gash Flow Operating activities £138.8 mlllion £482.9 million
Investing activities £(146.2) million | £(155.8) million

Strategic focus: To provide the financial resources to support long-term corporale stability.

Performance during the Regulatory Year: The Company continued to maintain good control in respect of both
its capital and operating costs by effectively managing the financial tisks that couild have had an adverse impact
on its business. The ED1 price control has been set for ight years which provides the Gompany with some
stability in terms of its income until 31 March 2023.

Revenue: The Company's revenue at £327.9 million was £8.5 millioh lower than the prior year primarily due {o
the profile of altowed revenues over the ED1-price control period afid reduced units distributed. :

Operating profit and position at the Regulatory Year-end: Thé Company's operating profit of £428.7 million
was £24.7 milion less than the previous Regulatory Year, prifiarily reflecting lower revenues, higher
depreciation charges, Increased business rates and pension costs. The statement of financial position on page
30 shows that, as at 31 March 2018, the Company had total equity of £998.8 million, The directors conslder the
Company to have a strong financial position which, when colipled with the preference of its parent company,
Borkshiré Hathaway Energy Gompany ("Berkshire Hathaway Energy"), for operating with lower levels of debt

than edlivaisnt companies in the sector; creates a stable base for continued strong performance during the ED1 '
period.

Finarice &asts and Investmernits: Finance costs net of investment income at £28.6 million remains unchanged
from ptior year,

Taxation: The effective lax rate in the Regulatory Year was 19.7%. Corporation tax of £19.3 million was paid in
the Reguiatory Year, this was higher than the prior Regulatory Year of £3.8 milliori due to the gonclusion of a tax
claim with HMRC in 2017. Details of the income tax expense are provided in Note 9 fo the financial statements.

Share capital and debt structure: There were no changes to the Company's share capital or debt structure during
the Regulatory Year.




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02206593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR (CONTINUED)

Cash flow: Thé Company a'I__;;'ns__t_o coliect from customers and pay suppliers within contracted terms. Any surplus
cash held is remitted to Yorkshire Electricity Group plc {("YEG"), a company in the Narthern Powetgrid Group,
and invested accordingly, generating a market rate of return for the Company. Movements in cash flows were as
follows:

- Operating Cash flow from operating aclivities at £138.8 million Was_.":44.1 miilion lower than
aclivities the previous Regulatory Year, mainly due to lower profits, higher tax paid and
adverse working capital movements,

- Investing activilies Net cash used in investing.activities at £146.2 million was £9.6 million lower than

the previous Reguialory Yeéar, reflecting lower capital expenditure and lower

customer contributions. _
- Financing The net cash from financing activities at £7.4 milion was £34.5 iliion higher
activities than prior Regulatory Year outflow of £27.1 million reflecting the Increase in loans

from Group undertaking offset by repayrient of external bonds/loans.

Penslons: The Gompany Is a participaling employer in the Northern Powergrid Group of the Electricity Supply
Pensicn Scheme (the "DB Scheme'), a defined benefit scheme. Furlher details of the Company's commitments
to the DB Scheme and the associated deficit repair payments are provided in Note 24 to the financidl
stateinents. The Company also participates in the Northern Powergrid Pension ‘Scheme, which is a defined
contribution scheme. : ‘ : -

Insurance: As part of its insurance and risk strategy, the Northern Powergfid Group has in place insurance
policles, which cover risks associated with employees, third party motor and public liability. The Northemn
Powergrid Group carries appropriate excesses on those policies and is effectively self-insured up to the level of
those excesses. Consequently, risk management is extremely important; given the contribution it makes to the
elimination or reduction of exposure to those risks.




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR (CONTINUED)

[

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Stratedic ohjective KPI 201718 | 201647

Delivering exceptional | BMCS 87.2% . 8B.8% _

customer service. BMCS Power Culs 87:7% 88.1%
BMCS General Enquiries 905% |  90.1% .
BMCS Connections _ 855% | 84.8%
SECV rank (combined with Northern Powergrid S
{Yorkshire) plc 3 5

Strategic focus: To improve the service delivered to customers.

Performance during the Regulatory Year: Under the broad measure of customer satisfaction ("BMCS"}), an
independent ftarket research company carried qut telephone surveys with the Company's customers to find out
how satisfied they were with services related to unplarined or planned power cuts, quotations and subsequent
connections, and general enquiries. At the end of the Regulatory Year, the Company recorded an overall
satisfaction score (an internal metric comprising .a blend of the power cuts, general enquiries and conneclions
BMCS scores) of 87.2%, which was comparable to the prior Regulatory Year (86.8%). To further enhance the
service provided to customers, a number of initiatives from the Company's customer experience improvement
plan were implemented. This included the conlinued development of the customer relationship management
systemn and enhancing the self-service offerings available to customers.

Throughout the Regulatory Year; further improvements were made (o the way in which the Contact Centrée
operates. The Quality Framewaorlk, which supports Contact Centre employees In delivering exceptional customer
service, was extended to the connections business. In addition, the Contact Centre was restructured to introduce
a metering defect customer support team, deslgned to effectively support customers during the government's
smart meter roll-out programme. '

Connectlons to the network

Strategtc focus: To reduce routine, small works end:to-end connections lead times by 30% during the ED1
period, actively facllitate the development of competition from independent connections providers ("ICPs"} and
deliver the major works service improvement plan as part of the Office for Gas and Electricity Marksts ("Ofgem”}
incentive on Gonnections Engagement ("ICE").




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR (CONTINUED}

Performance during thé Regulatory Year: Within connections services (the performance of which is measured
by the BMCS connections KPI), work to improve the tevel of customer services within the small works
conneclions business continued. In support of this, the processes implemented during 2017, which introduced a
single point of customer contact for the delivery of small works connegtions and the online service alteration
quotation facility, were further embedded.

The Company .conlinued to encourage competition in connactions from ICPs by providing dual quotations,
enabling ICPs to self-determine and approve points of connection to the network, and simplifying the
authorisation process for ICPs' operational staff.

In relation to the Company's IGE commitments, the 26 actions included in the service improvement plan were
successfully delivered during the Regulatory Year, To further enhance service levels, 17 additional actions
(initiated from customer feedback) were incorporated into the service improvement plan.

Corporate responsibilily

Strategjic focus: To build effective relationships with stakeholders whilst maximising the value of contact with
customers, especially those who are vulnerable and hard to reach,

Performanée during the Regulatory Year: The Company continued to work closely with key partriers such as
the- Environment Agency, local authorities and local resilience forums, particularly during periods of severs
weather. Collaboration with stakeholders in the wider energy Industry included the continued promotion of the
national "105" nuribér and participation in the January 2018 overhead line safely campaign, an Energy Nelworks
-Associalion initiative, supported by DNOs,

In May 2017, the Company, together with its affiliate Northern Powergrid (Yorkshire) plc, put forward its-
Stakeholder engagement ("SECV") submission to Ofgem in respect of work undertaken ‘during the previous
Regulatory Year. The submission provided an overview of activities, including, the work of the Social Issues
Expert Group (whose reiit is to enhance the services available to vulnerable customers}, the increased focus on
data quality which had resulted in cleansing the Company's Pricrity Services Register, and the strengthening of
relationships with partners who deliver key services to customers. Following the submission to Ofgem's panel,
the position of the Company in the context of the wider DNO group increased from fifth place to third. The
improvement demonstrated the effectiveness of the revised stakeholder engagement strategy launched in 2016.

Throughout the Regulatary Year, the: Northern Powergrid Group continued to support several charitable
organisations .and sponsor both the "Safety Champions" initiative, which is aimed at enhancing safety
performance, and the Cub Home Safety Activity Badge, which has been designed to teach Cub Scouts about
safely in and -around the home. A number of tallored education and safety programmes were also delivered,
including, 'Look up — It's live', a campaign to promote safely messages to the rural community, Make the Grade
in Energy, an education, skills and employability pragramme, Energy Heroes, targeted at the primary school
pupils to promote awareness of energy costs and ways of saving energy, and attendance at The Big Bang Fair,
which encourages young people to pursue science, technology, engineering and maths subjects.




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED

REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR (CONTINUED)

j ﬁ?® OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Strategic KPI 201718 2016/17
objective
Actoal Target Aclual Target

High-guality, Customer Minutes Lost 44.6 <61.9 45.0 <64.1
efficient operators | Customer Interruplions 51.8 <62.1 53.3 <62.7
funning a smart KPI 2017118 201617
reliable energy Actual Actual
system. Network investment £173.9 million £189.6 million

High~ voltage restoration time

(minutes) 57.8 53.0 55.7 51.0

Strategic focus: To enhance the reliabllity of the network in support of the commitment to achleve 8% fewer
iinplanned power cuts and reduce the average length of uhplanned power cuts by 20% during the ED1 period.

Performance during the Regulatory Year; Customer minutes lost {("CML™) and customer interruptions ("CI")
are the KPls set by Ofgem and used by the Company fo measure the quality of supply and system performance.
CML measures the average number of supply minutes lost for every connected customer due to both planned
and unplanned power cuts that last for three finutes or longer. Cl measures the average number of supply
interruptions per every 100 connected customers due to planned and unplanned power cuts that iast for three
minutes or longer. Performance during the Regulatory Year was better than Ofgem's target for both CML and
Cl.

The Company invested £173.9 million during the Regulatory Year through its approved network investment
strategy (2017: £189.6 million), which has been designed to deliver improvements and increase the network's
resilience. Various major projects were undertaken to reinforce the primary nelwork, refurbish transformers,
rebuild overhead lines, remove and replace oilfilled cables, change deteriorated poles, replace switchgear and
install and commission new remote control points.

Enhancements to the network also continued through investment in the use of technology. This included the
deployment of over 1,400 smait fuses to restore supplies in under three minutes to customers affected by
intermittent faults, and the roll out of 300 (to increase to 600) next generation innovative low-vollagé techinology
devices to perform multiple restorations of customers’ supplies, again In under three minutes. In addition, the
Company continued to further expand the automated power restoration system, designed to restore power to the
network in a safe manner in under three minutes, In relation to the Company's high-voltage restoration
performance during the Regulatory Year averaged some 57.8 minutes (2017: 56.7 minutes), after allowing for
severe weather incidents and other exeniptions, which was below the target level of 53 minutes,

The Company aims to respond effectively to the needs of customers and local communities and to achieve the
guaranteed standard for the restoration of supply: restoration within 12 hours of a power cut ‘occurring under
normal weather conditions. During the Regulatory Year over 99.8% of customers' supplies were restored within

this target.




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE COMMITMENT

Strategic objective | KPl {Calendar year) 2018 2017
T Actual Target Actual Target
High-performing "Ogcupational Safety and Health ' '
people doing Administration ~ Rate  (Northern
rewarding jobs in a | Powergild Group) _ 044 | 026 0.30 0.30
safe and secure Preventable Vehicle Actidents 12 13 11 10
workplace. Lost time accidenls 2 1 1 1
Restricied duty accidents 1 0 0 1
Medical treatment accidents 0 1 1 1
Operational incidents i} 2 5 3 5
Northern Powerarid Group Absence
rate .. 2.9% . 2.9%

Health and Safety

Strategic focus: To deliver a comprehensive safely and health improvement plan (“SHIP") and achieve the
Northern Powergrid Group commitment of halving its accident rate during the ED1 period.

Performance during the Regulatory Year: In common with the Berkshire Hathaway Energy grotp, the
Northern Powergrid Group measures its safely performance in terms of the Occupational Safely and Health
Adrinistration ("OSHA") rate, which is a measure used in the United States (*US") to capture safety incidents
down to minor levels of medical treatment. The Northiern Powergrid Group missed the OSHA rate of 0.26 (2017
0.30) recording a fotal of ten recordable incidents against a target of six. Whilst the outcome was disappoiriting,
the Gompany's lofig term safety record suggests that it is one of the safest in its sector. This has been
recognised in the form of a Gold President's Award from the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accldents for
the achievement of 14 conseculive Gold Avards. The Company falled to meet both the restricted duty accidents
and lost time accident targets. The failure to mest these targets was primarily the result of a series of felatively
minor driving incidents and trips, slips and falls. The Company continues to take aclion to seek to minimise these
lower level risks. '

Improving safely performance remains a priorily and the way in which this is achieved is set out in the
Company's SHIP. The SHIP focuses on leadership engagement, supervisory oversight, and workplace risk
management. These three areas are supported by driver training, operational safety seminars, stand-down
briefings and regular.safety reports and newsflashes:

The health and wellbeing of staff, Is a key priority of the Northern Powergrid Group and forms an integral part of
the SHIP. Existing support includes the availability of an independent employee assistance service, which is a
confidential, self-referral counselling and informafion service to assist with personal or worlk-related problems
and access to services including counselling and physiotherapy referrals. A number of new initiatives focused
specifically on mental health and wellbeing were launched during the Regulatory Year. These included the
recruitment of mental health first aid volunteers, providing mental health awareness training and a series of
mental health campaigns in conjunction with the United Kingdom {"UK") mental health awarenéss week.

The Company's OHSAS 18001 health and safety management systems successfully retained certification.
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NORTHERN POWERGRID {(NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR {CONTINUED)

Employesés

Strategic focus: To emphasise the importance of leadership and high standards of performance by engaging,
collaboraling and working with employees and their trade union representatives.

Performance during the Regulatory Year: The Northern Powergrid Group conducted an externally facilitated
eniployee survey to benchmark the level of employee engagement against top performing organisations and to
identify areas for improvement. In respanse to feedback from the most recent survey, a number of commitments
were made in respect of communication and to enhance the quality and quantity of time spent discussing
personal chjectives and development. '

During the Regulatory Year, 68 new recruils (2017: 71) joine____c_l the Northern Powergrid Group workforce renewal
programmme, including, for the first time, two Cyber Apprentices. In addition, 19 trainees graduated from their
training programmies. .

The Company has adopted the Berkshire Hathaway Eneérgy code of business conduct, which details the
commitment to ethics and compliance with the law, provides reporting mechanisms for known or suspected
ethical or legal violalions, and establishes minimum standards of behaviour expected of all employees, In
support of this, a "speaking up" process is in place enabling all employees to raise concerns of unethical acts,
malpractice or impropriety (including bribery or corruption), and an anohymous help line operated by an
independent company is also available.

At 31 March 2018, the Company employed 1,107 employees (2017: 1,052). Further information concerning how
the Northern Powergrid group is supporting gender diversity in the energy induslry can be found in the Northern
Powergrid gender pay gap reporl via the Northern Powergrid corporale website.

201718 201617
Male | Female | All Male ... | .Female All
Directors 6 1 71 8 1 9
Senlor Managers' | 26 4 30|  s2| 6 38
Total Number of Employees 884 | 223| 1,007| 882 190 | 1,052

! the crileria for calegorising the populalion of senior managers was made more stringent during the 2017/18 Regulalory Year which Is reflected in the reduction In

the lotal number
1"




REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
‘STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR {CONTINUED)

@ ENVIRONMENTAL RESPECT

Strategic objective KPI 2018 . L 2017
] ' . Actual Target Actual Target
Leaders in| Total OilfFluid Lost (litres) 12,124 12550 18,641 16,006
environmental respect| SF6 Gas discharges (kg) 36.13 34 1447 28
and low  carbon| Environmental incidents 1 <3 | 4 <6
technologies: ' L R : N I

Carbon Footprint (tonnes) 17,745 24,083 22,339 19,944

Strategic focus: Deliver Environmental "RESPECT" (Responsibility, Efficiency, Stewardship, Performance,
Evaluation, Communication and Tralning) and in doing so reduce oil and fluid loss by 15% and our business
carbor footprint by 10% during the ED1 period.

Performance during the Regulatory Year: The Company has operated a UK Accreditation Setvice scheme for
environmental management since the late 1990s and s certified to the erivironmental management systeins
standard 15O 14001; 2015. A full recertification assessment was carried out in March 2017 and a surveiliance
audit conducted in September 2017. Continued cerlification was confired following each audit.

The Corrpany's carbon footprint reporting framework is cerlified under the Certified Emissions Measurement
and Reduction Scheme for compliance with I1SO 14064-1:2006. The last full audit was undertaken in October
2017 where continued certification was confirmed. Initiatives including the implementation of telematics in fleet
vehicles have facilitated a further improvement in reducing the Company's carbon footprint during the Regulatory
Year to 17,745 tonnes (2017; 22,339 tonnes). '

In support of the target to furthér reduce oil and fluid loss, the 2017 annual environmental improvement plan
Intuded replacing fluid-filled cables and [ocating cable fluid leaks more guickly which resulled in a total fluid loss
of 17,745 lires (2017: 22,339). Additional activity to minimise the Company's impact on lhe environment
included placing overhead lines underground In National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty and
protecting wildlife and habitat. '

Sustainability

Strateglc focus: To help facllitate the UK's transition to a low-carbon economy [n the Company's capacity as a
major participant in the UK energy industry and in terms of its own carbon footprint.

performance during the Regulatory Year: As the counlry takes action to make significant reductions in its
carbon emissions, the way in which electricity is produced and used is expected to have a substantial impact on
the electricity network. This has already been seen through the number of low-carbon technology ‘installations
such as photovoltaic solar panels, electric vehicles and heat pumps. The volume and total capacity of
decentralised energy generation has also been growing steadily and, given the greater range of load and
generation technologies now connected to the network, the Company is taking action to develop innovative
solutions that will reduce the need for traditional and potentially expensive reinforcement of the networl,

From an innovation perspective, the Company is runping a portfolio of projects in the priority areas of smart
grids, smart meters, digital-enabled customer service and affordability.
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

REVIEW OF THE REGULATORY YEAR (CONTINUED)

A partnership with Nissan is supporting new electric vehicle projects for the trialling of ‘vehicle to grid’ technology
to enable car users fo supply power to the electricity network. In additlon, @ new praject is developing hybrid
battery technology to expedite the restoration of the electricity supply following a power cut, Collaboration with
Northern Gas Networks at the Integrel demonstrator site contintes to assess the potential future benefits of
integrating both gas and electricity energy systems. The Company continues to scope the role of distribution
system aperator (“DSQO”) through a project to explore the value of the transition for customers and to understand
the buslness changes required to realise those benefils. :

The Northern Powergrid Group climate change adaptation strategy recognises ihe impact that climate change is
anticipated to have on the business, the risks this poses -and the praposed actions to mitigale these iisks
including vegetation management, nelwork specifications for ghanging termperatures and improved weather
prediction. The installation of flood defences is one such key activity that is already underway and the delivery of
the committed programme in the ED1 period remains on track,

REGULATORY INTEGRITY

REGULATORY INTEGRITY

Strategic objective KPI ,
Trustworthy, fair and balanced, |‘Completion of a quarterly regulatory compliance affirmation process
creating win-win oltcomes.

Strategic focus: To manage the Company's business to the highest behavioural standards and adhere to a
policy of strict compliance with all relevant standards, legislation and regulatory conditions.

Performance during the Regulatory Year: Under the RIIO (revenue = incentives + innovation + outputs) model
for regulation, price controls are set for eight years. The ED1 price conlrol became effective on 1 April 2015 and
is due to end on 31 March 2023. The Company's base allowed revenue (excluding the effects of Incentive
schemes and any deferred revenues from the prior price control) before inflation reduced by 1.0% for the
Regulatory Year ended 31 March 2018, relative to the previous Regulatory Year. Base allowed revenues before
inflation remain constant for each subsequent Regulatory Year through to the 31 March 2023. Nominal base

allowed revenues will increase in line with inflation (as maasured by the UK's Retail Prices Index (“RPI")).

In order to assure compliance with licence and cther regutatory obligations, the Company operates a regulatory
compliance affirmation process, under which ownership of approximately 1,960 regulatory obligations are
assigned to around 80 managers. Those managers are required to review compliance with the relevant
obligations on a quarterly basis and report on any identified non-compliances or perceived risks which ‘are then
addressed by members of the execulive team. To minimise the risk of the Company breaching its licence
conditions and other statutory requirements, the board of directors review the outcome of each quarter's

exercise.

The Company submitted a risk-based dala-assurance plan for the regulatory year ahead, together with a report
detailing the assurance work actually carried outin the Regulatory Year and the findings of that work.

13




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST} LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Northern Powergrid ‘Group operates a structured and disciplined approach to the management of risk as
part of its overall risk management policy and in support of its finangial reporting practices. A robust system is-in
place to faciiitate the identification of new risks, including those associated with the achievement of the Northern
Powergrid :Group's sirategic objectives and Core Principles. Once |dentified, key risks and their respective

controls and mitigation plans are continually assessed and formally reviewed by the Governance and -Risk
Management Group ("GRMG"), which reports to the Audit Committee,

Supported by the internal audit function, the risk management programme includes regular reviews of the crisis
management, disaster recovery and major Incident plans: To determine the level of disaster preparedness and
responsiveness against threats to business continuity, risk management plans and processes are periodically
tested. This self-evaluation approach Is relnforced by that of the Berkshire Hathaway Ensrgy group, which
benchmarks risk management activities across its business uhits ang shares significant lessons learned.

| Risk Mitigations
Financial risks: the exposure to interest| - Monitored by the Treasury Committee
rate, tax, liquidlty and treasury risks - The Company is financed by long-term borrowings -at fixed

rates and has access to short-term borrowing facifiies at
floating rates of interest

- As at 31 March 2018, 100% of the Company's long-term
borrowirigs were at fixed rates and the average maturity fo
these borrowings was 12 years :

- Financial covenant monitoring is in place _

Pension costs: the cost of the DB Scheme| - The cost of the DB Scheme, including deficit repair

and possible effect on the current deficit payments, Is managed in triennial cycles by negotiation with

position - the trustees of the DB Scheme

- On-goitig and repair costs form part of the assessment of
cost made by Ofgem in each price control, and if judged
efficient, these costs are permitted to be recovered through
revenues at a stable level to provide certainty for customers

- The Company works with DB Scheme trustees to ensure that
scheme judgements reflect this indirect obligation to
customers

RPI fluctuation: costs Increase or change| - Performance against regulatory allowances including
by more than RPI having a direct impact on forecasts for the remainder of the price period is monitored
financial results, The rate of inflation as| - Appropriate corrective actions are taken lo ensure the
meastied by RPI is laken into account in|  Company remains within regulatory allowances

selting the Company's allowed income in
respect of each regulatory year
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02506693
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

Risk

Mitlgations

Regulatory Policy: merging role of DSO,
changing future outlook of the distribution
industry and emerging technology resulting
in a negative impact on the business model

- The Company's policy position supporting the expanded role
of D30 is being set oul _

- ‘Inriovation projects in place to develop and demonslrate future
technologies and commercial practices
- Regulatory and stakeholder engagement programme

Network Resilience: adverse weather or
terrorism attacks causing network disruption
and the interruption of essential services
resulting in feduced customer service,
penalties and a reduction in the number of
units delivered on which income Is charged

= Major incident and crisls management policies, plans and
governance arrahgements are in place

- An industry mutuat aid agreement exists

- Network investment ensures grid resilience

- Grid resilience programme and audits

Resource avallability: access to and
availability of skilled resource resulting In an
inability to deliver work programmes during
the ED1 period

Mix of direct labour and contracted resource is used
Workforce renewal programmes in place to recruit and retain
employees

- On-going training and development builds internal capability

- Employee engagement and health and well-being initiatives
are In place .

r

Health and Safety incldent: hazards that
could harm an employee, customer or third
party resulfing in réputational and financial
damage '

- Overseen by the Health and Safety Committee

- Clear policies and procedures exist that comply with
legislation to ensure the safety of the employees and
customers and protect the environment

- Health and safely waining is provided to employees on a
conlinuous basis

- Audit programme and inspection regimes are in place

- 18018001 safety management system in place

Environmental In¢ident: failure to prevent
network assets having a negative impact on
the environment resulting in financial
penalties and reputational loss

~ Incident response process and robust poficies and procedures
in place 3 _

- Programme to reduce fluid loss and the Northern Powergrid
Group’s business carbon footprint

- Investment in technology to minimise environmental incidents
and 'self-heal’ the nelwork

- Asset inspection programme

Cyhber-attack or cyber-security breach:
affecting hardware, systems, customer data
or intellectual property fesulting in
compromise to the safe operation of the
network or interruption to services supplied
to customers

- Robust cyber security risk mitigation programme is in place

- Accreditation under the 1SO 27001 Information Security
{process security) standard for certaln discrete business areas

- Compliance with the Centre for Internet Security Crilical
Security Controls

- Monitored by the Information Security Committee and the
board

15
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2018
PRINGIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

Internal Control N

A rigorous internal contro! environment exists -within the Northern Powergrid Group to support the financial
reporting process, the key features of which include regular reporting, a series of operational and financial policy
statements, investigations undertaker by internal audit and a stringent process for ensuring the implementation
of internal audit recommendations. In addition, the Northern Powergrid Group utilises comprehensive business
planning procedures, regularly reviews KPis to assess progress towards its goals, and has a strong internal
audit function to provide independent scrutiny. Financial controls include a centralised treasury operations and
established procedures for the planning, approving and monitoring of rhalor capital expenditure.

In accordance with Berkshire Hathaway Energy's requirements to comply with the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the
Company underlakes a quaiterly risk control assessment confirming that the &ffetiiveness of the system of
internal controls has been reviewed during the Regulatory Year. A self-cerfification process is in place, in
support of this review, whereby certain senlor managers are required to confirm that the system of internal
contral in thelr area of the business is operating effectively. Consequently, the directors believe that a robust
system of risk assessment and manhagement is in place.

The Company does not have a specific human rights policy. However, in accordance with the Gore Principles, it
remains fully committed to operating ethically and responsibly and with faimess and Integrity. This is
implemented through the policies and procedures it has in place which are applicable to all stakehalder groups
and encompasses employees' health, safety and weifare, dealings with customers, particularly those who are
vulnerabie, the impact of the Company on the environment and the contribution to sustainability.

The Northern Powergrid Group ls committed fo maintaining the highest ethical standards in the conduct of its
business and, implements Berkshire Hathaway Energy's code of business conduct, details of which can be
found on page 16. The Company has robust procedures in place to meet the requirements of the Bribery Act
2010. Every eémployee must undertake the code of business conduct fraining each year, which includes training
in respect of the Northern Powergrid Group's antl-corruption and anti-bribery policy.

Viabllity Statement : " .
The directors have chosen an eight-year period from 1 April 2015 for the purposes of making this statement as it
equates to the ED1 Period regulatory period for which the Company's income has been set. Various factors
were contemplated when making an assessment of Company's prospects including the general stability
associated with the regulatory environment, the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company, the
Company’s business mode! and stralegy, the forecasts developed as part of the Company's annual business
plan and the commitments made in the well-justified business plan. Consideration was also given to the
obligations contained in the Company's licence to provide Ofgem with annual certificates, confirming that the
directors have a reasonable expectalion that the Company will have sufficient financial resources, financial
facilities and operational résources availdble for the continuation of business for a period of 12 months. The
board determined any malerial variations to the assumptions used when providing those certificates was
unlikely.

Based on the results of their review, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Compariy will be able
to conlinue in operation-and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the ED1 period.

ON BEH/ LFﬁ THE BOARD:

P A Jones
Director

12 July 2018
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 02908693 _
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

The directors present their report together with the audited financial staterments and the auditor's report for the
Regulatory Year ended 31 March 2018.

DIVIDENDS
During the Regulatory Year, an interim dividend of £22.7 million was paid (2017: £21.8 million). The directors
recormmend that no final dividend be paid in respect of the Regulatery Year (2017 Enil).

The Company's dividend policy is that dividends will be paid only after having due regard to available
distributable reserves, avallable liquid funds and the financial resources and facilities neaded to enable the
Company to carry on its business for at least the next Regulatory Year. In addition, the level of dividends is set
to maintain sufficient equity in the Company so as not to jeopardise its investment grade issuer credit rating.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT _ _
The Company supports a programme of research that is expected fo contribute to higher standards of

performance and a more cost-effective operation of Its business. The new projects initiated dufing the
Regulatory Year have been detailed In the ‘sustainability" section on page 12.

During the Regulatory Year, the Company invested £2.1 million (2017: £0.5 million) (Note 6 to the financial
slatements) in its research and development activities.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The financial position of the Company, as at 31 March 2018, Is shown in the statement of financial position on
page 30. There have been no significant events since the Regulatory Year end. The directors intend ihat the
Company will continue to implement its well-justified business plan during the remainder of the ED1 price control
and by delivering the strategic objectives linked to the Core Principles, the Company will continus to develop its
business by efficiently investing in the network and improving the quality of supply and service provided to
customers. There are no plans to change the existirig business model.

DIRECTORS _

The directors who held office during the Regulatory Year under review and to the date of signing were:.
'R Dixon Non-exegutive Director {retired 26 Gctober 2017)
T E Fielden Finance Director

J M France Regulation Director (resigned 5 April 2018)

T H France General Counsel

NMGill Operations Director

P A Jones President and Chief Executive Officer

A J Maclennan Business Development Director

AR Marshall Non-executive Director

P C Taylor Non-executive Director

During and as at the end of the Regulatory Year, none of the directors was interested in any contract, which was
significant in relation to the business of the Gompany.

During the Regulatory Year and up to the date of approval of the Reporl of the Directors, an indemnity contained
in the Company's Articles of Assaciation was in force for the benefit of the directors of the Company and as
directors of associated companies, which was a qualifying indeminity provision for the purposes of the
Companies Act 2006.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Details of financial risks are included In the Principal Risks and Uncertainties on pages 14 of the Strategic
Report.
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REPORT OF THE DIREGTORS FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES o
As at 31 March 2018 and during the Regulatory Year it was the Company's policy not to hold any derivative

financiat instruments.

POLITICAL DONATIONS 7
No contributions were made to political organisations during the Reguwiatory Year (2017: £nil).

EMPLOYEES
Employee consultation o
A constitutional framework agreed with trade union representatives exists in respect of employee consultation.

The management team keep employees and trade union representatives informed of and involved as
approptiate in developments that may impact them now or in the future.

Employee engagement continues lo show improvement with local action plans augmented by routine
communication channels Including regular staff briefings, mestings with staff ‘and their representatives, and
utilising the Northern Powergrid Group's intranet.

During the Regulatory Year, the Presldent and Chief Executive Officer of the Northern Powergrid Group
continued to provide employees with updates on the Northern Powergrid Group's financial, organisational, safely
and customer service petformance thraugh regular electronic briefings.

Disabled employees

The Company is committed to equalily at work and, as such, its policy Is to provide all protected groups,
including disabled people, with équality at work in respect of employment, tralning, career development and
promotion, having regard to their aptitudés and abilities. Should any member of staff become disabled during

their employment, the Company will make feasonable adjustments, wherever possible.

NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT
The non-financial reporting Information pursuant to Section 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 has been
reported throughout the Strategic Report and the summary of principal risks and uncertainties. Detail in respect
of the relevant policies, risks and associated mitigations and non-financlial KPls can be found on the pages
referenced balow:

Environmental: pages 12 and 15

Employee: pages 10 and 11

Soclal; page 8

Human Rights: page 16

Anti-bribery matters: pages 11 and 16

In accordance with Section 414G of the Companies Act 2008, disclosures concerning r_elations with employees
and greenhouse gas emissions can be found on pages 12 and 18 of the Strateglc Report.
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REGISTERED NUMBER: 02906593
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT -
The Company has voluntarily sought to apply a number of the main princiPIes and certain supporting principles
and provisions in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (the “Code”) in so far as it considers them to be

appropriate 1o a privately owned group and a Gompany without a premium listing of equity shares.

The directors confirm that the governance framework in place is appropriate to the circumstances of the
Company and, where possible, the spirit of the Code has been applied. The framework is agreed with the
Northern Powergrid Group’s ultimate shareholder, Berkshire Hathaway Energy, with whom the Company has a
strong relationship, maintained through régular reporting and meetings with the President and Chief Exectitive
Officer of Berkshire Hathaway Energy and senior management team. The Company has not complied with main
principles A2, A3, B2, B8, B7, D1, D2 and E2 for the reasgns explained in the pages that follow.

Governance Framework
The governance framework provides oversight to all companies within the Northein Powergrid Group and
fliustrates the system by which they are directed and controlled.

Berkshire Hathaway
Energy

Board of Directors

Northern Powergrid

Haldings Company

Health and Salety
Management Treasury Committee Pensions Conimittee Aydit Committee
Committee

Governance and Risk
Management Group

€mergency Planning Co
ordination Group

Executive / Senlor Managerment Team
Insset RIsk Managenieny
Execullve Ravliew Group

|__1 Informatien Securlty
Conimittee

! A copy of the Code Is available from the Financial Reporting Gouncil website at https:/iwww.frc.org.ukf
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR-ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Role of the Boaid

The. board comprises five executive directors and two non-executive directors. The President @nd Chief
Execllive Officer is ulimately responsible for the leadership of the board, which Includes setting the board's
agerida and ensuring ils effectiveness. Although the board does not include a balanced number of execitive and
non-executive directors, the board believes that it possesses the requisite skills -and exXperience necessary to
provide effective leadership, stewardship and control of the Company. The independent non-executive directors
constructively chalienge the exectitive board and management team on the delivery of the Company's strategic
objectives. ' '

All board directors have overall responsibility for the management of risk and the internal control environment
which is designed to address Berkshire Hathaway Energy's US Sarbanes-Oxley Act requirement, the key
features of which can be found on pages 22 to 23 of the Strategic Report. Matters reserved for board approval
include but are not limited fo, the declaration of dividends, the approval of thé ahnual statutory and regulatory

accounts and changes to capital structure,

To facilitate the delivery of their duties, the directors continually update their knowledge of and familiarity with the
operations of the Company. This is supported by robust reporting arrangements, access to the Company's
operations and interaction with its employees. Information is provided to the board in a timely manner to enable
directors to cormit sufficient time to the preparation for and attendance at board meetings. In addition, updates
and briefings are circulated during the course of the regular board meeting cycle. The directors are able to utilise
the advice and services of the Company Secretary and her team. Upon reguest, the directors have access to
independent professional advice. - . 3 -

The board meets on a quarterly basis to review business performance, strategic initiatives and operattonal and
risk-related issues. Additional board meetings are held as required. Meetings of the board are chaired by the
President and Chief Executive Officer who has overall accountabllity for the operational management of both the
Company and the Northern Powergrid Group,

Attendance at meetings by board members during the year was as follows:

R Dixon Non-executive Director (retired 26 October 2017) 314
T E Fielden Finance Director 6/6
J M France Regulation Director (resigned 5 April 2018) 4/6
T H France General Counsel 516
N M Gilt Operations Director b/6
P A Jones President and Chief Execulive Officer 6/6
A J Maclenhan Business Development Director 6/6
A R Marshall Non-executive Direcior 5/6
P C Taylor Non-executive Director 316
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The Role of the Board {CONTINUED)

Relations with the Northetn Powergrid Group's shareholder

The Northern Powergrid Group (which include the Company) has an eslablished relationship with its
shareholder, Berkshire Hathaway Energy, reflected by the leadership structure, whereby the President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Narthern Powergrid Group reports directly to the President and Chief Executive Officer
of Berkshire Hathaway Energy. '

Regular interaction and dialogue with Berkshire Hathaway Enerdy ensures that strategic views of the Northern
Powergrid Group's shareholder are understood and aligiied, dnd that appropriate values and standards are set.
The relationship between the Northern Powergrid Group and its shareholder also negates the necessity to
establish @ nominations committee for the purpose of identifying board appointments and a remiineration
commiltee to consider directors’ and senior managers’ remuneration. Both of these functions are undértaken by
the appropriate representatlve of Berkshire Hathaway Energy anid the President and Chief Executive Officer. All
board appointments are considered with due regard to the board's overall composition including thé balance of
skills and experience ahead of recommendations being put to the board.

Execytive directors' and senior managers’ remuneration is considered by the appropriate representative of
Berkshire Hathaway Energy oh an annual basis and is explicily linked to the performance gvaluation process.
Each individual's effectiveness is measured against both personal and Berkshire Hathaway Energy goals with all
resulting awards based on merit and linked to the delivery of stretching accountabllities. All remuneralion Is

designed to promote the long term success of the Company and the Northern Powergrid Group with no
individua! involved in determining their own remuneration.

Non-executive director remuneration is reviewed on an annual basis. Any increases are made in line with the
wider Northern Powergrid Group's employee population and is subject to continued satisfactory performance. As
the Company's Articles of Association do not require the periodic retirement and re-election of directors, the
letters of appomtment in place for each of the non-executive directors are reviewed regularly ailowing for a

rutial evaluation of the benefit of individuals remaining in post.

The board does not undertake an annual avaluation of its performance, as performance is continually monitored
and assessed by Berkshire Hathaway Energy through the delivery of an agreed annual business plan. The
committees reporting into the board are evaluated through the activity delivered in accordance with their terms of
teference.

Management of the Company _ )
Operational management of the Company's business is delegated to a single senior management team with
specific functional responsibilities in respect of operations, safety, health and environment, asset managenient,
customer service, business development, policy and markets, regulation, human resources, organisation
development, legal and finance. The broader management team meets with the senior management team of the

Northern Powergrid Group on a weekly and monthly basis to menitor performance and address issues of policy.

A schedule of key delegations of authority has been approved by the board which enables senior managers to

make decisions up to certain finangial limits. These limis refiect the board’s level of risk appetite.
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GORPORATE GOYERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Diversity Pollcy B

The Northern Powergrid Group has adopled a number of policigs (including the policy on diversity at work and
code of business conduct) that collectively comprise the policy on diversity. Diversity Is actively supported
thraugh recruitment, educational programmes, eémployee opportunities and the Global Days of Service charitable
support programme. All appointments (which [ncllides board, ‘board committee, and 'senior management
appointments) are based on merit with due regard for diversity, including gender.

Board and Management Committees _ ' 7
During the year, there were a number of committees in operation, acting under delegated terms of reference

which oversee the Northern Powergrid Group and report regularly on their activities.

Committee Composition Duties

Health and Chairman' P-AJones Meets bi-annually to

Safety - oversee the implementation and

Management Members: o review the effectiveness of health and
«G M Earl, Director of Safety, Health and safely policy

To manage the Environment _ - develop the strategy for managing

health and =T E Fialden, Finange Director health and safety issues

safety policy <T H France, General Counsel - maonitor health and safély performance

and =N M Gill, Operations Director across the Northern Powergrid Group

performance of | -A J Maclennan, Business Development Director | - consider policy changes
the Northern : | - report to the board

Powergrid
Group . .
Treasury Chairman: T E Fielden Meets as required to
- oversee cash and fiquidity
To oversee and | Memibers: management;
implement - W J Fehiman, President of Berkshire Hathaway | - manage interest rate and foreign
treasury policies | Energy Company; g exchange risk; -
: P d Goodman, Executive Vice-President and - manage bank relationships and
Chief Financial Officer, Berkshire Hathaway secure long-term funding;
Energy - report ta the board.
. P A Jones, President and Chief Executive
Officer.

- L.Bennett, Treasurer and Investor Reporting
Manager |
-.D Brady, Treasury and Reporting Manager
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (GONTINUED)

Committee Composition Duties
Pensions Chairman: T & Fielden Meets quarterly to o

- exercise duties in respect of the DB
To oversee the | Members: _ Schenie and defined contribution
Northern - '8 J Lockwood, Group Financlal Controller scheme;
Powergrid - K Mawson, Head of Regulatory Finance and - considér any matters impacting of
Group’s ‘Systens; ) requiring amendment relating to the
approach to - N A Applebee, Director of People and Customer DB Scheme or defined contribution
the pension Senice schéms;
schemes « G Pearson, Head of Performance and Quality report to the board.

- R Dougherty, Pensions Manager.

Audit Chairman: J N Reynolds, non-executive Director | Meels annhually to
Committee (appointed as Ghairman on 26 October 2017) - carry out the functions required by

DTR 7:1.3R;

- A J Patterson, Director of Organisation
Development

To consider the | Members: - oversee the GRMG

application of | - R Dixon, non-executive Director (retired 26 - monitor the internal audit plan;
corporate October 2017) ' - sub-delegate activities to another
reporting, risk | - T E Fielden, Finance Director person or body as see fit. In
management December 2017, duties were sub-
and internal delegated to Berkshire Hathaway
control - Energy's audit committee;
principles - report to the beard.

Governance | Chairman: T E Fielden Meets thrae times per annum to
and Risk - monitor the risk management
Management | Members: framework;

Group - N A Applebee, Director of People and Customer | - oversee the Asset Risk Management
_ Service Executive Review Group;

To ensure - M Drye, Director of Asset Management - oversee Emergency Planning Co-
effective - G M Eail, Director of Safety, Health and ordination Group;

corporate Environment - oversee the Information Security
governance - P Exrwin, Policy and Markets Director Commiltee;

and risk - T E Fielden, Finance Director - report to the Audit Commitiee.
management | - T H France, General Counsel

processes are | - N M Gill, Operations Director

In place - A J Maclennan, Business Development Director

Internal Control and RIsk Management

Details of the main features of {

pages 14 to 16.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE REGULATORY YEAR ENDEDED 31 MARCH 2018
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Report of the Directors and the financial
stalements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the direclors to prepare financlal staterents for each financial year. Under that law, the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopled by the European Unioh. Under company law, the directors must not approve the
financial staterments unless they are safisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires the directors to:

- Properly select and apply accounting policies;

- Present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

- Provide additional disclosures wheh ¢ompliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand thé impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
Company's financial position and financial performance; and -

- Make an assessment of the Compahy's ability to continue as a going concern.

Each of the directors as at the date of the Annual Reports and financial statements, whose names and functions
are set out on page 3 in the Report of the Directors confirms that, to the best of their knowledge the Company's
financial staterments, prepared in accordance with applicable UK law and in conformity with IFRS, glve a true
and falr view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Gompany and the Strategic
Repoit and the Report of the Directors include a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties it faces.

NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT :

In accordance with Section 414CB(7) of the Companies Act 2008, the directors have elected to set out the
information required by Section 414CB (1) to (6) in the group annual report and audited consolidated financial
statements of Northern Powergrid Holdings Company, & copy of which can be fourd on Northern Powergrid's

corporate website.
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GOING CONCERN- o
A review of the Company's business activities during the Regulatory Year; together with details regarding Its
future developmerit, performance and position, its objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its

financial risk management objectives and details of its exposures to t_ra__li{'_ing__ri_s's}g-,= credit risk and liquidity risk are
set out in the Strategic Report, the Report of the Directors and the appropriate notes to the financial statements.

When considering continuing to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual reports and financial
stalements, the directors have taken irito account a number of factors, including the following:

- The Company Is a stable electri¢ity distribution business operating an essential public service and is
regulated by GEMA. In carrying out its functions, GEMA has a statutory duly under the Eléctricity Act
1989 fo have regard t6 the niéed to secure that licence holders are able to finance the activities, which are
the subject of obligations under Part 1 of the Electricily Act 1989 {including the obligations Imposed by
the electricity distribution licence) or by the Utilities Act 2000; '

- The Company Is profitable with strong underlying cash flows and holds investment grade credit ratings;

and
- The Company is financed by long-term borrowings with an average maturity of 12 years and has access
to borrowing facilities provided by Lloyds Bank plc; Royal Bank of Scotland plc and Abbey National

Treasury Setvices plc.

. Consequently, after making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable .expectation that the Company has
adequate résoufces to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual reports and flnancial statements.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR
Each of tha-directors, who is a director of the Company as at the date of this report, confirms that:

a) so far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit Information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and ~

b} the directors have taken all the steps he ought to have laken as a director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit Information and to establish that the auditor is aware of
that informalion.

This confirmation s given a@nd should be interpreled in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

AUDITOR
Deloitte LLP wili continue in office in accordance with the pravisions in Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006
and has indicated its willingness to do so.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

N4 (e

P A Janes
Director

12 July 2018
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

Independent Auditors’ report to the Gas and Electricity Markets Authorlty (the “Regtilator”) and to
Northern Powergrid (Northeast) Limlted {the “Company")

Report on the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

Opinion

We have audited the regulatory accounts of Northern Powergrid (Northeast) Limited ("the Company”} for
the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the profit and loss account, the slatément of
comprehensive income, the balance shest, the cash flow statement, the slatémant of changes in equity,
the principal accounting policies and the related notes 1 to 27. These Regulatory Accounts have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out herein. The financlal reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation Is Standard Speclal Condillon A30 of the Gas Distribution Licence (the
"Regulatory Licence™) and the accounting policies set out in the principal accouinting policles on pages 33
10 43.

in our opinion, Norlhern Powergrid (Northeast) Limited's regulatory accounts presents falrly, In all material
respects, in accordance with Standard Special Condition A30 of the Regulatory Licence and the
Company’s accounting policies.

Basis for opinion S

We conducted our &udit in accordanee with International Standards on Audiling (UK) ("ISAs (UK)"),
Including ISA (UK) 800, and applicable law, and having fegard to the guidance contained in ICAEW
Technical Release Tech 02/16 AAF "Reporling to Régulators on Regulatory Accounts’ issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants i England & Wales.

Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditor's responsibllities for the audit of
the Regulatory Accounts section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are refevant to our audit of the Regulatory Accounts in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained Is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter — special purpose hasis of preparation

We draw your altention to Note 1 of the Regutatory Accounts, which describes the basis of accaunting.
The Regulatory Accounts are separate from fhe statutory financial statements of the Company and are lo
meet the requirements of Standard Special Condition A30 of the Regulatory Licence. As a resull, the

Regulatory Accounts may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.
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REGISTERED NUMBER 02906583

Independent Audltors’ report to the Gas and Electricity Markets Authority (the "Regutator”) and to
Northern Powergrid {Northeast) Limited (the “Company") '

Gonclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation o which 1SAs (UK) require us to
report to you when: _
« the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in'the preparation of the Regulatory
Accounts [s not appropriate; or o o
s the directors have not disclosed In the Regulatory Accounts any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability o continue to adopt the golng concern
basls of accounting for a period of at least twslve months from the date when the Regulatory
Accounts are authorised for issue.

Other Information

The other Informalion comprises all of the Information in the annuat report other ihan the Regulatory
Accounts and our audilor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the ofher information. Our
opinion on the Regulatory Accounts does not cover the other Informaltion and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Regulatory Accounts, our responsibility Is to read the other informalion
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconslstent with the Regulatory
Accounts or our knowledge obtained In the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we
identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform
procedures to conclude whether there Is a malerial misstatement of the Regulatory Accounts or a material
misstatement of the other information. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement or inconsistency of this other information, we are fequired to report that fact. ’

We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

Responsibilities of the Directors

As explained more fully In the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on pages 24-25, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts in accordance with Standard
Special Condition A30 of the Regulatory Licence and the Gompany’s accounting policies. -
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determirie Is necessary to enable the
preparation of the Regulatory Accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the Regulatory Accounts, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operatiotis, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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NORTHERN POWERGRID {NORTHEAST) LIMITED
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Independent Auditors’ report to the Gas and Electricity Markets Authority (the “Regulator”)-and to
Northern Powergrid (Northeast) Limited {the “Gompany") '

Audltors’ responsibillties for the Audit of the Regulatory Accounts

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the Regulatory Actounts as a whole are
free from materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to igsue an auditor's repart that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordarice with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a matertal misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consideréd malerial if, individually or In the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Regulatory Accounts.

A further description of our responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements is localed on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of this report

This report is made, on terms that have been agreed, sol¢ly to the Company and the Regutator In order to
meet the requirements of Standard Special Condition A30 of the Regulatory Licence. Our audit work has
heen undertaken so that we might state to thé Group ahd the Regulator those matters that we have
agreed to siate to them Ih an independenit auditor's report, in order (a) to assist the company to meet ils
obligation under the Regulatory Licence to procure such a report and (b} lo facilltate the carrying out by
the Regulalor of its regulatery functions, and for ho other purpose. ‘To the fullest extant permilted by law,
we do not accept or assume respensibllily to anyone other than the company and the Regulator, for our
audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

Our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts within the ahnual report Is separate from our opinion on the
statutory financial statemenls of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.on which we
reporled on 25 April 2018, which are prepared for a different purpose. Our audit report in refation to the
stalutory financial statements of the Company {our "Statutory audit’} was made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur Stalutory
audit work was undertaken so that we might slate to the Company's members those malters we are
required to state o them in a statutory audit report and for no other purpose. In these circumstances, 10
the fullest extent permilted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibllity for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom our Statutory audit report is shown or into whose hands it may come save

where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wiiting. :
Dava Johnson, Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Detoitle LLP

Statutory auditor
Neéwcastle, United Kingdom

ol

19 July 2018
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 '

Notes 2018 2017
£m £m

Revenue 3 327.9 336.4
Cost of sales {13.1) {(14.1)
Gross profit 314.8 322:3
Distribuition costs (110.6) (103.1)
Adminlstrative costs (75.5) (65.8)
Operating profit 6 128.7 153.4
Profit on disposal of properly, plant and equipment 0.3 0.4
Investment income 7 - 04
Finance costs 8 (28.6) (29.0)
Profit before tax 1004 1256.2
Income tax expense 9 {19.8) (5.7)
Profit on ordinary activities after takation 80.6 119.5

A_il activities relate to continuing operations.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t MARCH 2018

N s e

There has been ho ofher coriprehensive income for the Gompany. Therefare, total comprehensive
income for the year Is £80.6 million (2017: £119.5 miliion).
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593
STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Notes 2018 2017
£m Em
Assels
Non-currant assets _
Property, plant and equipment 11 2,364.9 2,267.4
Intangible assets 12 49.2 421
2,414.1 2,309.5
Current assets
Inventories 14 13.3 11.5
Trade and other recelvables 15 50.6 __ 484
63.9 59.9
Total assets 2,478.0 2,369.4
Equity
Called-up share capltal 21 200.0 200.0
Retained earnings 22 798.8 740.9
Total equity 998.8 940.9
Liablllties
Current llabilitles
Trade and other payables 16 84.9 88.8
Tax payable 16 111 134
Borrowings 17 172.3 102.4
Deferred revenue 19 228 21.4
Provisions 20 14 0.7
2922 226.7
Non-current liabllities
Borrowings 17 507.0 547.0
Deferred tax 18 91.4 88.5
Deferred revenue 19 588.6 566.2
Prevlslons 20 0.1 0.1
1,187.1 1,201.8
Total llabllities 1,479.3 14285
Totally equity and fabllities 2,478.0 2,369.4

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for Issue on 12 July
2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

WA

P A Jones
Director
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER 02806593
STATEMENT OF CHANGES.IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Share Retalned Total
Capital Earnings ‘Equity
{Note 21) (Note 22)
£m £m £m

At 1 April 2016 200.0 643.2 843.2
Total comprehensive income for the year - 119.5 119.5
Dividends paid - (21.8) (21.8)
At 31 March 2017 200.0 740.9 940.9
Total comprehensive income for the year s 80.6 80.6
Dividends paid _ - (22.7) (22.7)
At 31 March 2018 200.0 798.8 998.8
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Notes 2018 2017
Em £m

Cash Flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 23 189,6 2177
Finance costs paid 131.5) {31.0)
Tax pald {19.3) (3.8)
Net cash from operating activities 138.8 182.9
Cash flows used In investing activities ) _
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (178.6) {194.2)
Purchase of intangible assets {12.4) (12.5)
Proceeds from disposals of properly, plant and equipment 0.3 0.4
Cuslonier ééntribiitlons receipls 445 50.6
Net-cash used in investing activities (146.2) _  (155.8)
Cash flows fram financing actlvities
Equity dividends pald _ {22.7) (21.8)
Rapayments of external borrowings {40.0) -
Movement in short-term loans from Group undertaking 60.1 {5.3)
Utilisation of external short-term borrowings 10,0 -
Net cash from/(used in) financing activitles 7.4 (27.1}

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents ‘ : -

Cash and cash equivalents at heginning of year -

Cash and eash equivalents at end of year -
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

N

OTES 7O THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

NOTESTOTHE REGULATORY AGLU NG PR L e e

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Northern Powergrid {Northeast) Limited is a private cofnpany limited by shares incorporated in
England and Wales and is part of the Northern Powergrid Holdings Company group of companies
{the “Narthern Powergrid Group”), The company is registéred in England and Wales and the
address of the registered office Is Lloyds Court, 78 Grey Street, Newcastie-upon-Tyne, NE1 6AF.

The nature of the Company's business modsl, strategic objectives, operations and -aclivities are

set out In the Strategic Report and in the Directors’ Report.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention and basis of preparatlon

The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"). The financial statements have also been prepared In accordance with IFRS
adopled by the European Union and therefore comply with Article 4 of thé EU IAS Regulation and
with those parls of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) that are applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS except where license conditions apply using the same accounting riles as the
Statutory accounts.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to iransfer a liabilily in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technlgue. In estimating the
tair value of an asset or a liabllity, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characisristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for méeasurement andlar disclosure purposes
in these financial statemenls is determined on such a basi§, except for leasing transactions which
are within the scope of 1AS 17, and measurémerits that have some similarilies to falr value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in usé in 1AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting puri:oses_,_ fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are obsarvable and
the significance of the inputs to the falr value measurement in its entirely, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjuisted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabllities
that the Company can access at the measurement date;

Levei 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset or Jiabllity.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED

REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

NOTES 7O THE REGULATORY AGCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Application of new and revised IFRSs
In the curcent year, the Company has a number of amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ('lASB") that are mandatorily effective for an
accouniting period that begins on or after 1 January 2017:

- Amendriients lo IAS 7 The amendments reguire an entity to provide disclosures that
Statement of Cash Flows enable users of financial statenents to evaluate changes in
liabilitles arising from financing activities. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate the application of these
amendments has had no material impact on the Company'’s

financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 12 Thé amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes clarify when &
Income Taxes deferred fax asset shoild be regognised for unrealised
‘ losses. The application of the amendments has not resulted
In any Impact on thg financial performance or financial
position of the company.

- Aniual Improvements to  The annual Improverments to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle include
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle a number of amendmerits to IFRSs. The application of these
amendments has had no effect on the Company's financial

statement.

" New and revised standards In issue but not yet effq_;:}ive
The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have bean issued but are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 201 8

- IFRS 9 - Financial A revised verslon of [FRS 9, Financial Instruments, was fssued
Instruments (1 January in July 2014 mainiy to include: a) impaliment réquirements for
2018). financial assets; and b) limited amendments to the classlfication

and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value
through  other  comprehensive  income' ("FVTQOCI"
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the appiication of
IFRS 9 will not have a material impact on amounts reported in
respect of the -Company's financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED

REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

- IFRS 156 - Revenue
from Conlracts with
Custormers (1 January
2018).

In May 2014, IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, was issued which establishes a single
comprehensivé maodel for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognilion guidance Including
IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and the related
Interpretations.

The cote principle of IFRS 15 Is that an anlity should recognise
revenue to deplci the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an-amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entilled in exchange for those goods or
sefvices. Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(of as) a performance obligation is salisfied. Far more
prescriptive guldance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios, Furihermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

The directors of the Corpany anticipate that the application of

IFRS 15 will not have a material impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Company's financlal position or performance,
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NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED

REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED])

FRS 16- Leases (1 IFRS 16 inlroduces a comprehensive model for the

January 2019) identification of lease airangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 wil supersede the
current lease guidance including JAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes belween leases and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is. controlled by a
customer. Distinctlons between operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accouiting, and Is replaced by a
model where right-of-use asset arid ‘a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees except for short
term leases and leases of low-value assels.

As of 31 March 2018, the Company has non-cancellable
operating léase commitments of £26:3 million, IAS 17 does not
require recognition of any right-of-use assel or liabllity for fulure
paymenits for these leases, A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements wilk meet the definition of a lease
under IFRS 16, and hence the Company will recognise a right-
of-Uise asset and corresponding liability In respect of all these
leases unless they quallfy for low-value or short-term leases
_upon the application of IFRS 16. The new requirement to
recognise a right-of-use asset and a related lease liability is
expected to have a significant Impact on the amounts
recognised in (he Company's statement of financial position
and the directors are currently assessing its potential impact.
The directors of the Company anlicipate that lhe application of
IFRS 16 is unlikely to have a material Impact on amounts
reported in the statement of profit or loss.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimalion, that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and thal have the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

- The allocatioh of overheads to property, plant and equipment which resulls In higher capital

expenditure and a reduction In operaling costs. Cosis are capitalised where it is probable that
future econamic henefits assaciated wilh the asset will flow to the enterprise; and the cost of the
item can be reliably measured.

The allocation of overheads to capital is derived from a detailed analysis of the costs and thelr
relevant cost drivers, which ls reviewad on an annual basis. There has been no change in the
methodology since the prior year.

The amount of overheads capitalised In the year was £40.0m (2017: £38.3m).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty _ )

In the preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS the Directors did not identify any
key assumptions concerning the future and other key solrces 'of estimation uncertainty at the énd
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrylng amouints of assets and labilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue. )

Revenue Is only recognised when the risks and rewards of ownershlp have been transferred lo a
third party. No revenue is recognised where there are significant uncertainties regarding the
consideration to be received or ihe costs associated with the transaction. '

Revenue Is measured at this falr value of consideration recelved or recelvable.

Revenue represents charges for the use of the Company's distribution network, amartisation of
customer conlributions, rental of meters, recharge of costs incurred on behalf of related parties
and the invoiced value of other goods sold and services provided, exclusive of value added tax.

Revenues from charges to end customers for the use of the Company's distribution network
inciude estimates of the units distributed. The estimated usage is based an historic data, judgment
and assumptions, :Revenues are gradually adjusted to reflect actual usage in the perlod during
which aclual meter readings are oblained.

Any under or ovér-recovery of allowed distribution network revenues, as prescribed by Ofgem, [s
not provided for iy the financial statements and will be recoveredfrepaid through fufure tafiffs.

Customer contributions towards distribution system assets are included in deferred revenue. The
Company's policy is to credit the customer contribution to revenue on a straight-line basis, in line
with the useful life of the distribution system assets.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when itis probable that the economic benefits
will flow Lo the Comipany-and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a lime basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futuré cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Income from Investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive

payment have been established.

Research costs N _ )
Expenditure on research activities Is wrilten off to the statement of profit or loss in the year in

which it is [ncurred.
Operating profit

O_peraﬂng profit is stated before Investment income, finance costs, profit on sale of property, plant
and equipment and income from other fixed asset investment.
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'NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593
NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation
The income tax expense represents the sum of (he tax currently payable and deferred lax.

The tax currently payable is basad on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
befere tax' as reported in the staternient of prolit or loss because of ilems of income .or expense
that aré taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deduclible. The
Company's current tax is calcutated using tax rates lhat have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of Ihe reporting peried.

Cuirent and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or direclly In equity; in which case the current and
deferred tax are also recognised In other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax is recognlsed on temporary differences between lhe carrying amounts of assets and
liabilitles in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the.computation -of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilittes are generally recognised for all taxable ‘temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avaitable against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utllised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises fram the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaclion
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabllities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities recogiised for taxable temporary differences associated with Investments In
subsidiaries and associates, and Interests In Joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeabte future. Deferred lax assets arlsing from deductible temporary
difierences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it Is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utllise the benefits of the

temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that that it Is no Ionger probable ihat sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset fo be recovered.

Foreign Currencies _

Transaclions in foreign curréncles are recognised at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporling period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried aft fair
value that are denominated in forelgn currencies are relranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of
historical cost in a foréign cirrancy are not retranslated.
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REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 {CONTINUED)

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes the purchase price of the asset and any cosls, including internal
employee and olther costs, directly altributable to bringing the asset to the iocalion and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. _
Depreciation is recognised so as to wiite off the cost of assets less thelr residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method:

Distribution systern assets.... .......c.ovvenes TP PYPP PRI 45 years
Distributed generatlon assets included in distribution system a85el8. e iiienen e oai1B yEQAIS
Metering equipment included in distibution system assels ................ ierererennens up to 5 years

Information technology equipment Iincluded in distribution syslem assels............ up o 10 years

Non-operational assets:

Bulldings = freBhold. ....vvers i s s e s .....up to 60 years
Buildings — leasehold................cvvniiin i ....lower of lease period or 60 years
Fixturas and equIPMBNt...... coveoiue i i st i up to 10 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any material changes In those eslimates accounted for on
a prospective basis. Due to the significance of the Company's investment in property, plant and
equipment, variations in eslimates could impact operating results both positively and negatively
allhough, historically, few changes have been required. ' '

Assels in the course of construction are cariied at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs Include professional fees, and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance wilh the Company's accounting policy. Such assets are classified to the appropriate
calegories of properly, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreclation on these assets, on the same basls as olher assets, commences when the assets
are commissloned. Assels are derecognised when they are disposed of profit or loss on disposal
is recognised in other gains on the statement of profit or loss.
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REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED}

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Internally-generated intangible assets o

An internally generated intanglble asset arising from development is recognised if the gonditions
set out in 1AS 38 retafing to the recognition of Intangible assets are met. The amount Initially
recogrised for Internally-generated intangible asset is the sum of expenditure incurred from the
date when lhe intanglble asset first meets the recognition criteria. Amortisation is recogiilaed on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. '

Impairment of tanglble and Intangible assets

At the balance sheet:date, the Coinpany reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is eslimated to
determine the extent of the impalrment loss (If any). Whaere the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of lhe
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An inlangible asset with an indefinite useful life is lested for impalrment at least annually and
whenever there Is an indication ihat the asset may be impaired.

Where the recoverable amount is estimated to be less than its qaiﬁ_t_'ying amount, the catrying
amount of the asset s reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately In profit or foss.

Software development costs

.Costs in respect of major developments are carried at cost Igss accumulated amorlisation and

accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-ine basis over the
estimated useful life of the software of up to 10 years. The gstimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting pefiod, with the effect of any changes In

estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis,

investments

[Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less provislon for impairment in value.

Inventorles

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated cosls of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Raw materials and goods for resale are valued al purchase cost on
an average price basis. Work in progress is valued at the cost of direct materials and labour plus
attributable overheads based on the normal level of activily less progress payments.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases wherever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership lo the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating

leases.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the statement of profit or loss In equal annual amounts
ovar the tease term.
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REGISTERED NUMBER 02906583

NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables #re measured -at Initial recognition at fair value. Appropriate allowances for
eslimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when there s
ohjective evidence that the asset is impaired.

Trade payables-
Trade payables are hot interest bearing and are stated at their hominal value.

Borrowings _

Borrowing costs directly attributable te the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assels that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
Ihntended use, are added to the cost of those assels, until such time as (he assets are substantially
ready for their intended use.

All othier borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period which they are Incurred.

Financtal instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the slatement of financial position when
the Company. becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financlal assets aiid financial liabilities are initially measured at falr value. Transaction costs that
are direclly attribiitable to the acquislion or issue of financial asdels and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial fiabllties, as
appropriate, on Initial recognition. . -

Provisions _

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimale ¢an be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimale of the consideration required to ssitle
the present obligation at the end of the reporling period, taking Into account the risks and
uncertalrities surrounding the obligation. When a_provision is measured using the cash flows
eslimated to setlle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the ecoriomic benefils required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third parly, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it s virtually ceriain that
relmburserrient will be recelved and the amount of the recelvable can be measured reliably

Financial liabllities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classlfied according o the subslance of the
contractual arrangement entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Falr value measurements _
For financlal reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inpuls to the fair value measurement in its eritirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1inputs are quoted prices (Unadjusted) In active markets for identical assels or liabilities
that the Company can access al the measurement date;

» Level 2 inpuls are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observahle
for the assét or liabllity, either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3inputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset or liability.

Financial Assets
Financlal assets, Including trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are

classified as loans and recelvables. Loans and recelvables are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an dctive market. Loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effeclive interest method, less any Impalrment.

The éffective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of an instrument and of
aflocating income over the relevant. petlod. The effective interest rale Is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts- through the expected life of the Instrument to the net
carrying amount on inilial recognition. : .

Interest income Is recognised by applying the effeclive interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the effect of discounting Js immaterial.

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a sligle class of assets on the face of the
statement of financial posilion) comprise cash at bank and other short-term highly liquid
invesiments with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes In value. K ‘

Finangial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Finarcial assels are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more évernts that occurred after the Initial recognition of thé financial asset, the
estimated fulure cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For -cerfain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assefs are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they were assessed nol to be impalred individually.
Objeclive evidence of impairmerit for a porifolio of receivables could include the Company's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the ftimber of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the -average credit period of 30 days, as well as observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reducéd by the impairment loss direclly for -all
financial assets with the exception of trade recelvables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an aliowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncallectible, it |s

written off against the allowance account. Subseq'_uehl recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in the stalement of profit or loss
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2 AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED

Capital mahagement

The Group manages its capital cenirally to ensure that entitles in the Group will be .able to
continue as going concefns while maximising the return fo stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall stralegy remains unchanged from 2016.

Pensions

The Company contrlbutes to the Northern Powergrid Group of the Eleclricity Supply Pension
Scheme (the "DB Scheme"), a defined benefit scheme. There Is no contractual agreement or
policy to aflow for accounting for the company's share of the definied beni it scheme's liabllities

and assets therefore the scheme has been accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

The company's share of the net defined benefit cost Is in relation to ordinary coniribution and
deficit repair payments. The contribution is determined by the number of current employees in the
Company in the pension scheme. The deficit repair payments are agreed by the Group wilh the
Trustees, these deficit repair payments are allocated by the group according to the liabillty relating
to previous and clfrent employees on the scheme within Northern Electric ple, Northemn
Powergrid (Yorkshire) ple, and Northern Powergrid (Northeast) Ltd. The eslimated amount of

contributions expecled to be pald to the pension scheme by the Company during the next financial
yearis £17.7m (2017: £19.7m).

The Company also participates in a defined contribution scheme. Conlributions payable to the
defined contribution scheme. are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year or
capltalised as appropriate Wwhen employees have rendered service entitling them to the
conlributions.

A liability Is recognised for benefits acctuing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave In the period in which the related service Is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected fo be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities
recognised In respect of short-lerm employee ‘beriefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid In éxchanige for the related service. Liabilities recognised in
respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present vafue of the esliniated
fulire cash outflows expected to be made by the Company In respect of seivices provided by
efmployees up to the reporting date.
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3

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

IFRS 8 requires opérating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Company that are regularly reviewed by the President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Northern Powergrid Group in order to allocate resources to those segments and fo

assess thelr performance.

In practice, the Présldent and Chief Execulive Offi
performance based upon the aggregale result
(Yorkshire) pic, another distribution network operat

s of

cer allocates resources and assesses
the Company and Northern Powergrid
or in the Narthern Powergrid Group, suggesting

that no segmental reporting is required. However, In-accordance with the Company'’s distribution
licence, the Company must publish certain segmental information in the Regulatory Accounts, as

follows: . .
Distrikuted Excluded Dé
Distribution Goneratlon Services Motering Minimls Total

2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018

£m Em £m £m £m £m
STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS
Revenue 2081 3.6 1.5 3.9 20.0 327.9
Cosl of sales (10.7) (1.1) - {1.2) (131)
CGross prefil 287.4 3.5 0.4 3.9 19.7 314.8
Distribution cosls (102.2) (6.9 - (1.8) (110.8)
Adriiinistratlon costs . (56.4) - - (0.4) {0.4) (19.4) _(76.6)
Operallng prgfit(loss) 4298 {3.4) - 2.0 0.3 128.7
OTHER INFORMATION
Capilal 1angible )
addilions 138.3 16.1 21.7 - - 176.1
Gapltal Intangliie N _
addlllons ] 11.7 0.3 0.4 - - 12.4

Distributect Excluded De
Distribution Genaratlon Services Meterlng Minimls Tolal

2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

£m Em £m £m £m £m
STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS
Revenue 307.4 341 1.7 44 19.9 336.4
Gost of sales {12.0) - (1.0 - {1.4) (141}
Gross profil 295.4 3.1 0.7 4.4 . .18.7 322.3
Digiribution cosis {96.1) (6.4} (1.6} - {103.1)
Admlinistration costs {46.8) {0.3) (0.4) {18.3} (66.8)
Operaling profit{loss) 162.6 {2.3) 0.4 24 0.4 153.4
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital tanglble
additions 149.9 208 241 - 194.0
Gapltal Intanglble
additlons 12.6 - - - - 12.8

Revenue Is all in respect of sales to United Kingdom customers.

44




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593
NOTES TQ THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

4 STAFF COSTS
2018 2017
£m £m
Salaries 51.5 501
Soclal security cosls 5.6 57
Defined berigfit pension costs 26.1 21.2
Defined contribution pension cosls 21 1.6
_ 85.3 78.6
Less charged to properly, ptant and equipment {43.2) (41.7)
42.1 36.9

A large proportion of the Company's employees are members of the Northern Powergrid Group of
the ESPS; details of which are given in Note 24.

The average monthly number of employees during the year was:

2018 2017
No. No.
Technical 339 331
Industiiai 438 438
Administration : : 191 194
Ciher 117 96
1,085 1,059
5 DIRECTORS' & KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION ' 2018 2017
_ £000 £000
Highest Paid
Short-term employee benefits 402 321
Post-employment benefits = -
Other long-term benefits 435 370
837 691
2018 2017
, £000 £000
Total
Short-term employee henefils : 837 674
Post-employment beniefits 44 38
Other long-term benefits 682 624
1,563 . 1,336
Directors who are members of the defined benefit scheme 3 3

Accrued pension benefit relating to highest pald director ) -
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5 DIRECTORS' & KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION (CONTINUED
OTHER KEY PERSONNEL REMUNERATION
Total
Short-tertn employee benefits

Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefils

2018 2017
£000 £000
451 404
70 81
228 238
749 723

Other key personnel includes a number of senior functional managers who, Wwhilst ‘not board
directors, have authority and responsibllity for planning, directing and conlrolling

the Company.

the activities of

The directors and key personnel are remunerated for their services to the Northern Powergrid
Group, of which the Company Is a subsldiary. The figures above represent the shaie of the costs

borne by the Company:

6  OPERATING PROFIT

This is staled after charging/(crediting):
Staff costs (Note 4)
Research and Development
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
~ Amortisation of deferred revenue
Amortisation of intarigibles
impairment loss on trade and other recelvables

Analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows:

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the statutory audit of
the Company's annual accounts

Other services supplied pursuant to legislation in respect of
regulatory accounts

Other services

2018 2017
Em £m
4241 36.9

241 0.5
76.6 747
(21.6) (19.7)
53 4.1
0.2 0.4

2018 2017

£000 £0600

121 125

45 45

15 -

Other services supplied pursuant to legislation relate to regulatary reporting in line with Ofgem’s

requirements.

7 INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest receivable from Group undertakings

45

2018

2017
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NOTES TQ THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED)

8 FINANCE COSTS

2018 2017
Em Em
Interest payable on loans from Group undertakings 23.3 23.2
Interest payable on other loans 8.2 8.4
Total Interest expense 31.6 31.6
Amounts indluded in the cost of qualifying assets {2.9) (2.6
Total finarice.costs 28.6 . 29.0
Interest Is capitalised at 5.27% (2017: 5.26%).
g INCOME TAX
2018 2097
£m £m
Analysis of tax expense
Corporation tax 16.9 o127
Deferred tax 2.9 (7.0}
Total fax expense in statement of profit or loss 19.8 5.7

The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The
difference is explained below:

2018 2017
£m £m

Profit on ordinary activittes before income tax 100.4 1252
The total charge can be reconclled to the accounting profit as
follows: Profit on ordinary aclivities mulliplied by the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK of 18% (2017: 20%) 19.1 25.0
Effects of:
Changes in legislation (0.6) (5.0)
Under/(over) provision for prior years 1.4 {14.0)
Non-taxable income {0.1) (0.3)
Tax expense 19.8 5.7
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

2018 2017
£m £m

Tax expense comprises:
Current tax expense: _
Gorporation tax charge for fhe year 7.3 23.4
Qver provislon for prior years {0.4) _{10.7)
Total current tax charge 16.9 12.7
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax expenses relating to the origination and reversal of
‘temporary differences 3.5 (2.0)
Effect of changes in legislation {0.6) (5.0
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) 2.9 {7.0)
Tax on profit before tax 18.8 5,7

The Finance Act No 2 2015 included provisions to reduce the corporation tax to
from 1 Aprll 2047 and Finance Act 2016 introduced a further reduction in the main
tax to 17% from 1 April 2020. Accordingly deferred tax assets and liabililtes have
at the tax rates which will be in force when the underlying temporary differences

reverse.

10 DIVIDENDS

19% with effact
rate corporation
been calculated
are expected to

2018 2017 2018 2017
Pence per Pence per share £m £m
share '
Dividend paid ' 113 ~ 109 22.7 - 218
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Distribution Fixtures Non-
system and Operational Total
Equipment Land &
Buildings
£m £m £m £m
COST
At 1 April 2016 2,657.8 35.3 4.2 2,697.3
Additions 1896 o = 194.8
Disposals {8.0) (0.6) = (8.8)
At 1 April 2017 2,839.4 39.7 4.2 2,883.3
Additions 173.9 2.2 - 176.1
Disposals (8.9) {0.2) - (8.1}
At 31 March 2018 3,004.4 4.7 4,2 3,050.3
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2016 623.5 24.3 1.9 549.7
Charge for the year 70.8 3.6 0.3 T4.7
Disposals (7.9) (0.6 - (8.5)
At 1 April 2017 586.4 27.3 2.2 615.9
Charge for the year 74.3 4.0 0.3 78.6
Disposals ' (8.9) (9.2) - {9.1) -
At 31 March 2018 651.8 311 2.6 §85.4
Net book value at 31 March 2018 2,352.6 10.6 1.7 2,364.9
Nét book value at 31 March 2017 2,253,0 12.4 2.0 2.267.4.
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT-AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Assetls in the course of coristriuction included above

Distribution Fixtures Non-
system and Operalional Total
Equipment Land &
Buildings
£m £m £m £m
At 1:April 20186 162.0 - - 162,0
Additions 189.6 - - 189.6
Available for use (162.1) - - {162.1)
At 1 April 2017 189.5 - - 189.5
Additions 173.9 - - 173.9
Avallable for use _ (146.9) - - {146.9)
At 31 March 2018 216.5 - - 216.5

The net book value of hon-operational land and buildings comprises:

2018 2017
£m £m
Freehold - - - 1.3 1.5
Long-leaseheld 0.4 0.6
1.7 2.0

The Company has entered Into contractual commitments In relation to the future acqulsition of
property, plant and equipment of £17,7m (2017: £22.1m).
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13

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COosT
At 1 April 2016
Additions

At 1 April 2017
Addlitions

At 31 March 2018

AMORTISATION
At 1 April 2015
Charge for the year

At 1April 2017
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2018

Net book value at 31 March 2018

Net book value at 31 March 2017

INVESTMENTS

Software
Development
Costs
£m

58.7
12.6

71.3
12.4

Details of the investments held by the Company as at 31 March 2018 are listed below:

Name of Company

Electralink Limited

MRA Service
Cornpany Limlted

DCUSA Limited

Smart Energy Code
Company Limited

Finance plc

The above invésiménts are unlisted.
Electralink Limited £62 (2017: £62),

Limited £1 (2017; £1), Smart Energy Co
Finarice ple £60,000 (20
plc is Lloyds Court, 78 Grey

Country of
Registration

England and
Wales
England and
Wales

Engtand and
Wales

England and
Wales
England and
Wales

Holding of
Ordinary
Shares
619 at 10p

iat£1

1 at£1

1at£l

60,000 at
£1

Proportion

6.7%
1.0%

1.7%

0.9%

100%

Nature of
Business

Data transfer network operator

Governance of the electricity
industry’s Master Registration
Agreement _
Manggément and governance of
the Distribution Connection and
Use of System Agreement
Management and governance of
the Smait Energy Code

Finance company

The cost and net book value of the invesiments are
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MRA Service Company Limited £1 (2017: £1), DCUSA
de Company Limited £1 (2017: £1) and Northern Eleclric
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14 INVENTORIES

2018 2017
£m £m
Raw materials and consumables 12.8 11.2
Work in progress 0.5 0.3
13.3 11.6
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
Em £m
Distribiition use of system receivables 45.3 45.8
Amounls receivable from sale of goods and services 24 02
Prepayments and accrued income 1.7 1.0
Other recéivables 1.2 14
50.6 484

The directors consider that the carcying amount of trade and other receivables approximales their
fair value calculated by discounting the future cash flows at the market rate at the statement of
financial position date. The maximum exposure to risk ta the Company is the book value of these
recelvables less any provisions for impairment. The fair valuation of assels Is based onh Level 1
inputs.

Distribuition use of system receivables

The customers setved by the Company's distribution nelwork are supplied predominantly by a
small number.of electricily supply busingsses with RWE NPower ple accounling for approximately
0% of distributioh revenues in the regulatory year to 31 March 2018 (2017: 23%); and British Gas
accountirig for approximately 14% of distribution revenues in the regutatory year to 31 March 2018
(2017: 15%), Ofgem has determined a framework Which sets credit limits for each supply business
hased on lts credit rating or payment history and requires them to provide credit cover if thelr
value at risk {measured as being equivalent to 45 days usage) exceeds the credit limit.
Acceptable credit typically Is provided In the form of a parent company guarantee, letter of credit
or an escrow account. Included within other payables aré customer deposits of £1.4m as at 31
March 2018 (2017: £0.4m).

Ofgem has Indicated that, provided the Company has implemented credit control, billing and
collection processes in line with best practice guidelines and can demonstrate compliance with the
guidelines or is able to satisfactorily explain departure from the guldelines, any bad debt losses
arising from supplier default will be recovered through an increase in fufure allowed income.
Losses incurred to date have not been material. Included In the Company's use of system ("UoS")
receivables are debtors with a carrying value of £0.3m which have been placed into administration
and provided In full at the regulatory year-end (2017: £0.3}

Amounts receivable from sale of goods and services

Sales of goods and services comprise all Income streams which are not classlified as UoS income.
Examples of non-UoS income streams would be service alterationsfdisconnections and recovery
of amounts for damage caused by third parties to the distribution system.

The average credit period on sales of goods and services is 30 days. Interest is not generally
charged-on the trade receivables paid after the due date. An allowance for doubtful debls is made
for debts past their due date based on estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods
and services, determined by reference to past defauit experience.
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15

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Amounts recelvable fromi sale of goods and services {continued)

Included in the Company's amounts receivable for goods and services balance are debtors with a
carrylng amount of £2.9m (2017:-£1.1m) which are past dug at the reporting date and for which
the ‘Company has provided an irrecoverable amount of £0.5m (2017: £0.3m) based on past

experience. The Company does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 205 days (2017: 223 days). '

Included in the Company’s amounts receivable for goods and services balance are debtors with a
carrying amotint of £0.1m (2017: £0.1r). These amounts are past due at the reporting date and
the Corpany has not provided for any amounts as not béing recoverable because there has not
been a signlficant change in crediit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The
Company does not hold any collateral over ihese balances, The average age of these
receivables |s 99 days (2017: 78 days).

Ageing of past due but not Impaired recelvables

2018 2017
£m £m
30-60 days - 0.1
60-120 days 0.1
120-210 days - -
Total . . : 0.4 - 0.1
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
£m £m
At 1 Aprll 0.6 0.2
Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss 0.2 04
Amounis utilised/written off in the year - - -
At31 March 0.8 0.6

In determining the recoverabllity of the trade and other recelvables, the Company considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade and other recelvables from the date credit was initlalty
granted up to the reporting date, The concentration of credit risk, other than in relation to UoS
receivables, is Hmited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the
directéfs believe that no further credit provision is required In excess of the allowance for doublful
debts.

included. in the allowance for doubtful debts are specific trade recelvables, with a balance of
£0.4m (2017: £0.2m), for companies which have been placed in administration. The impalrment
represents the difference between the carrying amount of the specific trade receivable and the
present value of the expected liquidation dividend.
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15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Categories of financial assels

2018 2017
£m £m
Loans and receivables at amartised cost 48.9 47.4
‘“Total financlal asséets 48.9 47.4
Non-current assets 2,414.1 2,309.5
Inventories 13.3 1.5
Prepayments and accrued income . 1Y 1.0
Total non-financial assets __2,429.1 2,322.0
Total Assets . 2,478.0 2,369.4
16 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
2018 2017
Em £fm
Payments received on account _ 45.1 458
Trade payables 8.2 1.5
Amounts owed to Group undertakings (Note 26) 0.5 0.5
Other taxes and social securlty costs 54 3.7
Accruals 201 32.3
Other payables 56 : 53
84.9 88.9
Current income tax liabilities
2018 2017
£m £m
Corporation tax 11.1 13.4

The directors consider that the carrying amount of other financial liabilittes approximates thelr fair
value, calculated by discounting future cash flows at market rate at the slatement of financial
position date. The fair valuation of liabliiies is based on Leve) 1 Inputs. Trade credilors and
accruals princlpally comprise amounts outslanding for trade _purchases and ongolng costs.
Invoices are paid at the end of the month following the date of the Invoice. The Company has
financial risk management poliies in place fo ensure that all payables are paid within the credit
timeframe.
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16

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The following tables defail the remaining contractual maturilies for the non-derivative financial
liabllities included in Notes 16 and 17. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the eariiest possible date on which the

Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

Less
than 3 months 1to 5 5+
3 months To 1 year Years Yeadrs Total
£m £m £m £m £
2018:
Non-interest bearing 39.8 . - - 39.8
Variable interest rate - - -
llability 111.7 , 1117
Fixed interest rate liability 2.6 66.4 225.1 584.1 878.2
164.1 66.4 225.1 584.1 1,028.7
2017.
Non-interest bearing 43.3 - - - 43.3
Variable interest rate
_Il_ability 51.6 - - - 516
Fixed interest rate liahility 26 68.0 277.4 600.7 048.7
97.5 68.0 277.4 600.7 1,043.6
Categories of financial liabllities
2018 2017
£m £m
Loans and payables at amortised cost 693.6 656.2
Total financial liabilities 693.8 656.2
Paymenls received on account 45.1 45.6
Income tax liabilities 102.5 101.8
Other taxes and social security 5.4 3.7
Agcruals 201 428
Deferred revenue 6114 587.6
Provistons 1.2 0.8
Total non-financial liabilities 785.7 7723
1,479.3 1,428.5

Total liabilities
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17 BORROWINGS

The Direclors' consideration of liquidity and interest rate is described In the Strategic Report on

page 5.
Book value Fair value
2018 2017 2018 2017
£m £m £m Em
Loans 210.3 240.5 219.0 258.9
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 469.0 408.9 586.6 547.8
679.3 6549.4 8056 . 806.7
The borrowings are repayabte as follows:
On demand or within one year 172.3 102.4 172.3 103.6
After one years 507.0 547.0 633.3 7031
679.3 649.4 B05.6 806.7
Analysls of borrowings:

Short-term loan 10.0 = 10.0 -
Yorkshire Electricity Group plc short-term loan 111.7 516 111.7 516
Northern Electric Finance plc 2020~ 8.8756% 104.1 104.1 122.2 131.0
Northern Eféctric Finance plc 2035 - 6.126% 50.4 © 504 68.2 “70.7
Yorkshire Electrlcity Group plc 2037 — 5.9% 101.5 101.5 148.2 163.5
Northern Electric Finance plc 2037 - 5.126% 101.3 101.3 136.3 141.0
European Investment Bank 2018 — 4.065%* - 40.2 . 414 .
European Investment Bank 2019 — 4.241%* 40.2 40.2 40.2 429
European Investment Bank 2020 — 4.386%"* 39.2 39.2 41.5 434
European Investment Bank 2027 — 2.564% 120.9 1209 _ 127.3 131.2

' 679.3 6494 _ 8056 _ 8067

The fair value of the bonds is determined with reference to quoted market prices. The diractors'
estimates of the fair value of bank loans @nd Internal borrowings are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable oufrént market transactions or dealer quotes for simltar instruments. The fair value of
short-term borrowings is equal to their book value. All loans are non-secured and are
denominated in sterling.

* The 2018, 2019 and 2020 borrowings from the European Investment Bank were drawn downi In
twelve tranchis. The interest rates shown below are average rates for those repaymeiit dates.
The spread of inlerest rates Is as follows:

2018: 3.901% - 4.283%

2019: 4.077% - 4.455%
2020: 4.227% - 4.586%
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BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Interest ah short-terin loans and inter-company short term loans is chargéd al a fioating rate of
LIBOR plus 0.36%, thus exposing the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. A 1% movemaent in
interest rates would subject the Company to an approximate change in Interest costs of £0.8m per
year. This is consldered to be an acceptable level of risk. All'cther loans are at-fixed interest rates

and expose the Company t0 fair value interest rate risk.

The covenants associated with the 2036 bonds Issued by Northern Eleciric Finance plc, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, include restriclions on the Issuance of new indebtedness and the making of
distributions dependent on the scale of the ratio of Senior Total Net Debt to Regulatory Asset Value

("RAV").
The definition of Senior Total Net Débt excludes any subordinated debt and any debt Inclirred on a non-

recourse basis. In addition, it excludes interest payable, any fair value adjustments -and unamorlised
issue costs,

The Company's Senior Total Net Debt as at 31 March 2018 totalled £669.2m. Using the RAV value as at
March 2018, as oullined by Ofgem In its electricily distribution price control financial model published In
November 2016, and adjusting for the effects of movemenis In the value of the Relail Price Index gives
an approximation for the RAV value as at 31 March 2018 of £1,335.9m. The Senior Total Nel Debt to
RAV raflo for the Coinpany is therefore estimated at 49.4% (2017: 49.3%).

At 31 March 2018, the Company had available £84.0m (2017: £94.0m) of yhdrawn committed borrowing
facillties in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met,

DEFERRED TAX _
Accelerated
Tax _ :
Depreciation Other Total
£m £m £m
At 1 April 2016 957 (0.2) 95.5
Credit to statement of profit or loss (6.9) (0.1) (7.0)
At 1 April 2017 88.8 (0.3) 86.5
Credit to statement of profit or [oss 2.9 - 2.9
At-31 March 2018 91.7 {0.3) 91.4

Other comprises provisions and employee expenses deductible for tax on a paid basls and claims
for hold over relief,
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DEFERRED REVENUE

At1 April 2017
Additions
Ameoriisation

At 31 March 2018

Included In current liabilities
Included in non-cureent liabilities

2018 2017
£m £m
687.6 553.4
45.4 53.9
{21.6) _ (19.7)
611.4 . 5876
2018. 2017
£m £m
22.8 214
588.6 566.2
611.4 587.6

Deferred revenue represents contributions from customers made in advance towards distribution
system assets, This income is released to the statement of profit or loss up lo 45 years on a

stralght line basis in line with the useful economic life of the distribution system assets,

PROVISIONS
Claims Olher Total
£m £m £m
At 1 April 2016 0.9 0.6 15
Utilised/paid in the year (0.8) (0.3) 1.1)
Charged to the statement of profit or loss : 04 0.1 0.6
At 1 Aprll 2017 0.5 0.3 0.8
Utllised/paid in the year (0.6) (0.1) {(0.7)
Charged to statement of profit or loss 1.0 0.1 11
At:31 March 2018 0.9 0.3 1.2
2018 2017
£m ~£m
Included in current Habilities 14 0.8
Included in non-current fabilities 0.1 0.1
1.2 0.9
Claims: Provision has been made to cover costs arising from actual claims,

which are not externally insured. Seltlement is expected ‘substantially

within 12 months.

Other: ' Primarlly consists of “a provision for future 'safe disposal of
transformers which contain oil contaminated with Polychlorinated
Biphenyls (PCBs) and for an amount to cover claims made under
section 74 of the New Road and Slreet Works Act 1991, Coels are
expected to be incurred over the next 15 years.
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21 SHARE GAPITAL

2018 2017

No.lE Mo.fE

Ordinary shares of £1 each 200.0 200.0
Allolted, called-up and fully paid 200,000,100 200,000,100

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income.

22 RETAINED EARNINGS

Retained
Earnings
£m
A1 Aprll 2016 _ 643.2
Total comprehensive income for the year 119.5
Dividends paid (21.8)
At 31 March 2017 740.9
Total comprehensive income for the year 80.6
Dividends pald (22.7) .
At 31 March 2018 798.8

23 RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX TO CASH GENERATED FROM

OPERATIONS
2018 2017

Em £m
Profit befare income tax 100.4 125.2
Depreciation and amortisation B3.9 78.8
Profit on disposal of fixed assets {0.3) {0.4)
Amortisation of deferred revenue (21.6) (19.7)
Movermsnt in provislons 04 {0.6)
Finance costs 28.6 29.0
Investment Income , - (0.4}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 191.4 211.9
Increase in inventories (1.7) -
(Increase)/decrease In receivables {2.6} 4.5
Increase in payables 26 1.3
Cash generalted from operations 189.6 217.7
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PENSION COMMITMENTS

Introtluction

The Company contributes to two pension schemes, which are operated by Northern Eleclric ple
on behalf of the paricipating companies within the Northern Powergrid Group. Thase pension
schemes are:

- The Northern Powergrid Group of the ESPS (the "DB Scheme"}; and
- The Northern Powergrid Pension Scheme.

The Northern Powergrid Pension Scheme was introduced for new employees of the Northern
Powergrid Group from July 1997 and Is a money purchase arrangement :accotinted for as a
defined contribution scheme.

The DB Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for directors and employees, which provides pension
and other related retirement benefits based on final pensionable pay. The DB Scheme closed to
staff commencing employment with the Northern Powergrid Group on or after 23 July 1997.
Members who joined before this date, Including some Protected Persons under The Electricity
(Protected Persons) (England and Wales) Pension Regulations 1990, continue to bulld up future
pension henefits.

Under the DB Scheme, employees are typically entilled to annual pensions on retiremenl at age
63 of one-eightleth of final pensionable salary for each year of service plus an additionaf tax-free
gash lump sum -at retirement of three times pension. Benefits are also payable on death and
following other events such as withdrawing from active service. '

No other post-retirement benelits are provided to members of the DB Scheme.

The DB Scheme is a defined benefit plan that shares the risk between varlous entities under
camimon control. There is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the defined
benefit cost for the plan as a whole to individual companies within the Northern Powergrid Gratip
and, ‘accordingly, the Company accounts for the DB Scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme.

Unless otherwise stated, disclosures within this note are representative of the Northern Powergrid
Group as a whole and not the Company on an individual basis as the Company accounts for the
DB Scheme as If it were a defined contribttion scheme.

Rola of Trusfees

The DB Scheme Is administered by a board of Trustees which is legally separate from the
Company. The assets of the DB Scheme are held In a separate trustée-adminlstered fund. The

Board of Trustees is made up of Trustees appointed by Northern Eleclric plc, as the Principal
Employer of the DB :Scheme, Trustees elected by the membership and an independent trustee,
The Truslees are required by law to act in the interests of all relevant beneficiarles and are
responsible In particular for the assét Investment slrategy plus the day-to-day administration of the
benefits payable, They also are responsible for jointly agreelng with the Principal Employer the
level of contributions due to the DB Scheme.
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Funding requirements

UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently (i.e. to.a level In excess of the
current expected cost of providing benefits). The last actuarial valuation of the DB scheme was
carried oul by the Trustees' actuarial advisors, Aon Hewilt, as at 31 March 2016. Such valuations
are required by law fo take place at intervals of no more thah three ysars. Following each
yaluation, the Trustees and the Northern Powergrid Group must agree the conlributions required
(if any) to ensure the DB Scheme is fully funded over time on the basis of suitable, prudent
assumptions. Contributlons agreed in this manner constitute a minimum funding requirement.

The carrent funding valuation was completed as at 31 Maich 2016. The Trustees and Company
will be conducting the next valuation as at 31 March 2014,

Agreement was Teaghed during August 2017 with the Trustees to repalr a furding deficit of
£194.9m as at 31 March 2016 over the 9 year period to 31 March 2025, sitbject to the actuarial
assumptions adopted for the trlennial valuation as at 31 March 2016 being borne out in practice.
The agreement Includes cash payments of £19,0m per anhum over the period to 31 March 2017,
followed by payments to be made aver the remaining 8 years of the recovery plan of £27.4m per
annum. All payments‘are made on a monthly basis. _ _
All contributions set out above are in 2017/18 prices and will be increased each year in line with
increases in RPI over the period until they fall due, The expected employer contrlbution for the
year ended 31 March 2019 s £28.3m.

The contributions payable by the Northern Powergrid Group to the DB Scheme in respect of future
benefits, which are accruing, are 43,6% of pensionable pay. These contributions were determined
as part of the 31 March 2016 actuarial valuation and are payable in addition to the deficlt repair
¢onlributions mentioned above. These rales will femain in place until such a lime as a new

schedule of contributions is agreed between the Trustees and Northern Eleclric plc as part of the

31 March 2019 valuation. In additioh, the Company pays 3.6% of pensionable pay lo the DB

Scheme In respect of the expenses of running the DB Scheme.

Under the rules of the DB Scheme, any future surplus in the DB Scheme may, following
consultation with the Group Trustees, be allocated for the henefit of the members of the DB
Scheime andlor the Principal and Participating Employers.

61




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED

REGISTERED NUMBER 02006593

NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED])

24

PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Pensions' Regulation
The UK penslons market Is regulated by the Pensions Regulator whose key statutory objectives in
relation to UK defined benefit plans are to:

- protect the benefits of members;

- promote and to improve understanding of good administration;

- reduce the risk of situations arising which may lead to compensation being payable fram the
Pensicn Protection Fund ("PPF"); and

- minimlse any adverse Impact oii the sustainable growth of an employer.

The Penslons Regulator has various powers incltiding the power to:

- wind up a schémé where windirig up Is necessaty to protect members' interests;

- .appoint or remove a frustee;

- Impose-a schedule of company contributions or the calculation of the technical provisicns
where trustees and coripany fafl to agree on appropriate conirlbutions; and

- impose contributions whete there.has beén a detrimental action against the scheme.

Profile of the DB Scheme

The Defined Benefit Obligation ("DBO"} includes benefits for current employees, farmer

employees and current pensioners. The overall duration of the DB Scheme's obligation was
assessed to be about 17 years based on the results of the 31 March 2016 funding valuation. This
Is the weighted-average time over which benefit payments are expected to be made.

Broadly, about 40% of the liabllities are attributable 16 current employees (duration about 24
years), 10% to former employees (duration about 26 years) and 50% to current pensioners
(duration about 14 years).

Risks associated with the DB Scheme 3 _ . _
The DB Schemé exposés the Northetn Powergrid Group to a number of risks, the most significant

of which are:

Risk

Volatile
assel
returns

Description

The DBO is calculated using a discount
rate set with reference to corporate bond

yields: If assels underperform this discount

rate, this will create an element of deficit.
The DB Scheme aims to hold a significant
proportion (44%) of its assels in growth
assets (such as equities) which, although
expécled to outperform corporate bonds in
the long-term, create volalility and risk in

the short-term.
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Mitigation

The allocation to growth assets is monitored
fo ensure It remains appropriate given the
DB Scheme's long-term abjectives. The
Trustees regularly review the strategy from
growth seeking assets and have diversified
some relurn-seeking assets from equities
into Reinsurance and Listed Infrastructure to
reduce overall risk. To avoid concentration
risk, the allocation to UK equity Is restricted
to 35% of the total equity allocation.
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Risk

Changes
In

bond
ylelds

Inflation
risk

Currency
risk

Life
expectancy

The Company and Trustees have ag
when appropriate. This Includes the
more closely match the nafur
detivatives such as swaps and repurchase a

Desctlption

A decrease In corporate bond ytelds will
Increase the value placed on the DBO for
accounting purposes, although this will be
partially offset by an increase in the value
of the DB Scheme's bond holdings.

A significant proportion of the DBO s
indexed In line with price inflation
{specifically in line with RPi) and higher
inflation will lead to higher liabilities.

To Incréase diversification, the DB Scheme
invests in overséas assels. This leads lo a
risk that foreign currency movements
negalively impact the value of assets in
Sterling terms.

The malority of the DB Scheme's
obligations are to provide benefits for the
pensiohable lifetime of the member, so
increases In life expectancy will result in an
increase in the liabilities.

Mitigation

The DB Scheme also holds a subsiantial
proportion of ils assets (61%) as bonds,

which provide a hedge against falling bond

yields (falllng yields which increase the bBO
will also increase the value of the bond
agsets). There are some differences in the
credit quality of bonds held by the DB
Scheme and the bonds analysed to decide
the DBO discount rate, such thal there
remalns some risk should yields on different

quality bond/swap assets diverge.

The DB Scheme holds around 30% -in UK
government index-linked bonds  which
providle a hedge against higher than
expected Inflation Increases of the CBO
(rising inflation will increase both the DBO
and the value of the Index-linked bond
porifolio).

The OB Scheme hedges a proportion of the
overseas invesiments currency risk for those
overseas curfericles that can be hedged
efficienlly,. The DB Scheme's currency
hedging ratio s currently 50% in respect of
overseas developed market currencies.

The DB Scheme regularly reviews -actual
experlence of its membership against the
actuarlal assumptions underlying the future
henefit projections and carries out detailed
analysis when selting an appropriate
scheme specific mortalily assumption.

reed a long-term sirategy for reducing investment risk as and
use of Liability Driven Investment (LDI) from October 2016 to
& and duration of the DB Scheme's liablililies through the use of
greements, The portfolio Is designed to hedge a

praportion of the interest rate and inflation risk Inherent in the Scheme's liabilities. The target

hedging level is currently 75% of the DB

the funding valuation.

Scheme's liabllities as measured on the basis used for

The Trdstees insure certain benefits payable on death before retirement

Other risks

There are a number of other risks associated with the
(such as paying out the wrong beneflls), legistative risks

burden onh pension schemes
higher proportion of :members

sutvivor's pension from the DB Scheme).
A particular legislative risk exists in relation to the equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pension

("GMP"), a quasi-state benefit
of a UK government pregramme &

Pension.
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DB Scheme Including operational risks
(such as the goveriiment increasing the
through new legislation) and other demographic risks {(such as a
dying than assumed with a dependant eliglble to receive a

accrued by many UK plans over the period 1978 to 1997 as a result
llowing pension plans to “contract out" of the State Second
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The UK Government has announced its intention to ensure that these benefits, which currently
pay oul at different levels for men-and women, are gender-equalised In accordance with sex-
discrimination legistafion.

This would ingrease the DBO but it is not possible to fully quantify the impact of this change at this
stage. However it could lead to an Increase in the order of 2% to the DBO for a typical scheme

Reporting at 31 December 2017 _

For the purposes of this disclosure, the current and fulure pension costs of the Northern
Powergrid Group have been assessed by Aon Hewitt, a qualified independent actuary, using the
assumptions set out below, which the actuary has confirmed represent a reasonable best
estimale of those costs. This review has been based on the same membership and other data as
at 31 March 2016, The board of Northern Powergrid Holdings Company has accepted the advice
of the acluary and formally approved the use of these assumptions for the purpose of calculaling
the penslon cost of the Northern Powergrid Group.

The.results of the latest funding valuation at 31 March 2016 have been adjusted to 31 December
2017. Those adjustments take account of experience over the period since 31 March 2016,
changes in market conditions, and differences in the financial and demographic assumptions, The
present value of the DBO and the related current service cost were measured using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

For schemes closed to new members, such as the DB Scheme, the current service cost
calculated under the Projected Unit Credit Method is expected to increase as the members of the
scheme approach retirement.

The principal assumptions used to calculate the liabilities under |AS 19 are set out below:

Main financial assumptions Decemher December
2017 2016

% p.a. % p.a.

RPI Infiation 2,85 3.00
Rate of long-term increase in salaries 345 3.00
Penjsion increases 2.85 2.90
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.60 2.70

The financlal assumptions reflect the nature and term of the DB Scheme's liabilities.

Main demographlc assumpfions December December
2017 2016
Life expectancy for a male currently aged 60 26.7 271
Life expectancy for a female currently aged 60 25.8 28.8
Life expectancy at 60 for a male currently aged 45 28.1 28.6
Life expectancy at 60 for a female currently aged 45 20.9 306
Proportion of pension exchanged for additional cash at retirement 10% 10%

The mortalily assumptions are based on recent actual moralily experiente of DB Scheme
members and altow for expected future improvements in mortality rates.

64




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED

REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

NOTES TQ THE REGULATORY AGCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 {CONTINUED)

24
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The DB Schemie's funds are invested in the following assets:

Asset allocation

Developed market equity
Emerging market equity

Property

Reinsurance

Listed infrastructure

nvestment grade corporate honds

Other debt

Fixed interest gilts
Index-linked gills

Liability driven investment
Cash

Total

Decemher December
2017 2016
£m £m
187.9 338.6
74 12.9
164.7 91.4
83.0 71.3
127 99.2
423.5 366.9
43.4 30.3
28.2 524
- 3.1
644.2 581.2
51.0 1071
- 1,746.0

1,764.4

The fair values of the above equity and debt instruments are determined based on quoted market
prices In active markels whereas the fair values of properiies are not based on quoted prices in

-aclive markets.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the DB Scheme's assets, which related to- self-

investment, amounted to Nil% (2016: Nil%).

Changes to the present value of the DBO durlng the year

Opening DBO

Current service cast

Interest expense on defined benefit obligation

Contributions by DB Scheme participants

Actuarlal gains oh DB Scheme liabilities arising from changes in
demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gains)flosses on DB Scheme liabilitles arising from
changes in financlal assumptions

Actuarlal (gains)/losses on DB Scheme iabilities arising from
expefiehce )

Net benefits paid out

Liabiiities extinguished on seitlements

Closing DBO

December December
2017 2016
£m £m
1,722.9 1,463.2
17.9 14.9
45.1 53.0
0.9 1.0
(33.3) -
49.7 3118
{19.8) (25.9)
{52.5) (84.8)
{101.8) -
1,629.1 1,722.9
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Sensltivity to key assumptions

Chariges in the fair value of DB Scheme assets of the December December
Northern Powergrid Group during the year 2017 2016
£m £m
Operiing fair value of DB Scheme assets 1,754.4 1,541.3
interest income on DB Scheme assels 46.9 56.7
Re-measurement (losses)/gains on DB Scheme assels 64.7 200.9
Contributioris by the employer 45.0 40.5
Contributions by DB Scheme participants 0.9 1.0
Net benefits pald out (52.5) (84.8)
Administration costs incurred (1.3 {1.2)
Assels distributed on settlements 0 (1124) -
Closing fair value of DB Scheirie assels 1,746.0 1,764.4

Actual return on DB Scheme assots December  December

2017 2016

o £m £m

Interest income on DB-Scheme assels 46.9 56.7

Re-measurement (losses)/galn on DB Scheme assets 64.7 200.9

Aclual return on DB Scheme assets 111.8 257.6

The key assumplions used for IAS 19 are discount rate, inflation and mortality. If different
assumptions were used, It could have a material effect on the results of the Northern Powergrid

Group. The sensitivity of the results to these assumplions is as follows.

Changes in Revised DBO

DBO
£'000
Scheme defined bensfit obligations 1,629.1
Following a 10 bps decrease in the discount rale 31.9
Following a 10 bps increase In the discount rate (31.5)
Following a 10 bps increase in the inflation assumption 27.0
Following a 10 bps decrease In the inflation assumplion (26.7)
Fallowing a 1 year Increase in life expectancy 68.5
Following a 1 year decrease In life expectancy (67.1)

£'000

1,766.7
1,689.7
1,762.9
1,693.3
1,790.0
1,666.9

The sensitivily Information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopfed
when adjusting the results of the latest funding valuation to the statement of financial position

dale. This Is the same approach as has been adopted in previous periods,
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

2018 2017
fm Em
Minimiim lease payments undér operating leases recognised in the year 7.2 6.8

At the statement of financial position date, the Company had outstanding commitments for fulure

minimum Jease payménts under non-cancellable operaling leases, which fall due as follows:

2018 2017
Em £m
Within one year 4.8 4.5
in the second to fifth year inclusive 17.0 14.5
After five years 4.5 5.2
26.3 24.2

Leases consist of rent payable in respect of properties and vehicle leases (primarily from related
parties).

67




NORTHERN POWERGRID (NORTHEAST) LIMITED

REGISTERED NUMBER 02906593

NOTES TO THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED

26

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has advanced loans to companies in the Northern Powsrgrid Group. The fotal
interest included in Investment income in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2018 was £nil (2017: £0.4m).

The Company has received loans from other companies in the Northern Powergrid Group. The
total interest included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2018 was £23.3m (2017: £23.2m). Included within borrgwings is £469.0m as at 31 March
2018 (2017; £408.9m).

Interest on loans fo/from Northern Powergrid Group companies Is charged at a commercial rate.
The Company entered into Iransadlions, in the ordinary course of business, with affiliated

companles, Transactlons entered into and trading balances outstanding at the regulatory year-end
were as follows:

Related Party Sales o’ Purchases Amaiinis
Related from Related Owed to
Party Party Related Party
(Note 16)
£m £m £m
2018; ,
Inlegrated Utility Services Limited 0.3 3.0 -
Integrated Ulilily Services Limited (registered - _ -
inEirey E 1.1 -
Northern Electric ple 5.5 -
Narthern Powergrid Metering Limited - 0 -
Northern Powergrid (Yorkshire) plc 201 15.1 -
Vehicle Lease and Service Limited - 39 0.5
2017:
Integrated Utility Services Limited - 0.4 ‘ 2.8 -
Integrated Ulility Services Limited (registered
in Elre) - 1.3 0.1
Northern Eleclric ple - 6.0 -
Norlhern Powergrid Metering Limited 0.1 - -
Northern Powergrid_ (Yorkshire) plc 19.2 13.2 -
Vehicle Lease and Service Limited - 3.8 0.4

Sales and purchases from related parties were made at commercial prices.
The amounis oulstanding are unsecured and will he seltled in cash. No guarantees have been

given or received. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed
by related parties
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27 (MMEDIATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate parent undertaking of Northern Powergrid (Northeast) Limited .is Northern Electric
ple. The ultimate controlling party and ultimate parent undertaking of Northern Electric plc is
Berkshire Hathaway, Inc., a company lncorporated in the United States of America.

Copies of the group accounts of Berkshire Hathaway, Inc. (the parent undertaking of the largest
group preparing group accounts) which include Northern Powergrid (Northeast) Limiled and the
group accounts of Northern Electric ple, the smallest parent undertaking to prepare group
accounts in the Uhited Kingdom, can both be obtalned from the Company Secretary, Northern
Powergiid Holdings Company, Lloyds Court, 78 Grey Sireet, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE1 6AF.

69







